Public Document Pack

ASHFIELD DISTRICT COUNCIL
Council Offices,
Urban Road,
Kirkby in Ashfield
Nottingham
NG17 8DA

Agenda
Planning Committee
Date:

Wednesday, 26th May, 2021

Time:

10.00 am

Venue:

Council Chamber, Council Offices, Urban Road,
Kirkby-in-Ashfield
For any further information please contact:
Lynn Cain
l.cain@ashfield.gov.uk
01623 457317

If you require an adjustment to enable you to participate or access the meeting, please
contact the Democratic Services team at least 48 hours before the meeting.

PLANNING COMMITTEE
Membership

Chairman:

Councillor Sarah Madigan

Vice-Chairman:

Councillor Andy Meakin

Councillors:
Samantha Deakin
Rachel Madden
Phil Rostance
Jason Zadrozny

Arnie Hankin
Lauren Mitchell
Helen-Ann Smith

FILMING/AUDIO RECORDING NOTICE
This meeting may be subject to filming or audio recording. If you have any queries
regarding this, please contact Members’ Services on 01623 457317.

SUMMONS
You are hereby requested to attend a meeting of the Planning Committee to be held at the
time/place and on the date mentioned above for the purpose of transacting the business
set out below.

Carol Cooper-Smith
Chief Executive

AGENDA

Page

1.

To receive apologies for absence, if any.

2.

Declarations of Disclosable Pecuniary or Personal Interests and
Non Disclosable Pecuniary/Other Interests.

3.

To receive and approve as a correct record the minutes of a
meeting of the Committee held on 17 March 2021.

5 - 10

4.

To receive and consider the attached planning applications.

11 - 68

5.

Recent Planning Appeal Decisions.

69 - 74

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 3
PLANNING COMMITTEE
Virtual Meeting held on Wednesday, 17th March, 2021 at 10.00 am

Present: Councillor Sarah Madigan in the Chair;
Councillors Kier Barsby, Samantha Deakin,
Arnie Hankin, Rachel Madden, Lauren Mitchell,
Kevin Rostance (substitute for Chris Baron),
John Smallridge, Helen-Ann Smith,
Daniel Williamson and Jason Zadrozny.
Apology for Absence: Councillor Chris Baron.
Officers Present: Alex Bonser, Lynn Cain, Carol Cooper-Smith,
Louise Ellis, Mick Morley, Christine Sarris,
Sara Scott-Greene, Robbie Steel and
Shane Wright.
In Attendance: Councillors Tom Hollis and Dave Shaw.

P.35

Declarations of Disclosable Pecuniary or Personal Interests and Non
Disclosable Pecuniary/Other Interests
Councillor Jason Zadrozny declared a Non Disclosable Pecuniary/Other
Interest in respect of Application V/2020/0184, Bellway Homes Ltd, Outline
planning application (with all matters reserved except access) for a residential
development of up to 300 dwellings with associated infrastructure and
landscaping, Land Off Ashland Road West, Sutton in Ashfield. His interest
arose from the fact that he had previously met and spoken with the applicant
and some objectors, but in doing so had not expressed an opinion at any
point.

P.36

Minutes
RESOLVED
that the minutes of the meeting of the Planning Committee held on 17
February 2021, be received and approved as a correct record.

P.37

Town and Country Planning Act 1990:
Town Planning Applications Requiring Decisions
1. V/2020/0184, Bellway Homes Ltd, Outline planning application (with
all matters reserved except access) for a residential development of up
to 300 dwellings with associated infrastructure and landscaping, Land
Off Ashland Road West, Sutton in Ashfield

Page 5

(In accordance with the Council’s Constitution and the Members’ Code of
Conduct, Councillor Jason Zadrozny had previously declared a Non
Disclosable Pecuniary/Other Interest in respect of this application. His interest
was such that he stayed in the meeting and took part in the discussion and
voting thereon.)
In accordance with the Council’s Policy for dealing with late matters in relation
to planning applications, (Minute No. D4.17, 1993/94 refers), officers
proceeded to give a verbal report as to additional comments received in
relation to the application as follows:Late Item - It has been brought to our attention that there has been a briefing
note send to some members. Officer have nothing more to add that is not
already covered in the report.
Having been previously agreed that the speaking slots be extended in time
from 5 to 15 minutes due to the size and complexity of the application,
Alderman Ramon Buttery, Paul Grafton and Malcolm Hull, as objectors, and
Chris Dwan, for the Applicant, took the opportunity to address the Committee
in respect of this matter. As per the agreed process, Members were then
offered the opportunity to clarify any points raised during the submissions as
required.
It was moved by Councillor Jason Zadrozny and seconded by Councillor
Helen-Ann Smith that the officer’s recommendation contained within the report
be rejected and planning consent be refused.
Reasons for rejecting officers’ recommendation:
The development would result in a significant adverse impact on the character
and appearance of the area and surrounding landscape, particularly through
the urbanising affects adjacent to Brierley Forest Park. The loss of greenfield
and associated habitats would also result in significant and irreversible harmful
impacts to biodiversity. In addition, the density of the development is
considered to be too high and out of keeping with the surrounding area.
Accordingly, the proposal would be contrary to Policies ST1 (a, b, and e), ST2
– ST4 and EV2. There would also be conflict with Part 15 of the National
Planning Policy Framework: ‘Conserving and enhancing the natural
environment.’ It is considered that these harms would significantly and
demonstrably outweigh the benefits of the development.
For the motion:
Councillors Kier Barsby, Samantha Deakin, Arnie Hankin, Rachel Madden,
Sarah Madigan, Lauren Mitchell, Kevin Rostance, John Smallridge,
Helen-Ann Smith, Daniel Williamson and Jason Zadrozny.
Against the motion:
None.
Abstention:
None.

Page 6

2. V/2020/0647, Mr J Price, Change of Use from Derelict Land to
Domestic with Vehicle Storage Shed, Grassed Recreation Area, Hard
Standing for Vehicle Storage and Hard Surfacing for Access Road, Land
Rear of 22A Back Lane, Huthwaite
It was moved and seconded that the application be deferred to enable officers
to discuss matters further with the applicant and be brought back to committee
at the earliest opportunity.
3. V/2020/0796, Mr J Price, Amenity Block, 22A Back Lane, Huthwaite
It was moved and seconded that the application be deferred to enable officers
to discuss matters further with the applicant and be brought back to committee
at the earliest opportunity.
4. V/2020/0867, Ashfield District Council, 2 Dwellings, Land Off
Hawthorne Avenue, Hucknall
It was moved and seconded that conditional consent be granted as per
officer’s recommendation.
5. V/2020/0873, Ashfield District Council, Demolition of Existing Garage
and Erection of 4 Dwellings, Land at Chestnut Grove, Hucknall
It was moved and seconded that conditional consent be granted as per
officer’s recommendation.
6. V/2020/0306, Lidl GB Ltd C/O WSP, Demolition of Existing Building
and Creation of Food Store (A1), Access, Landscaping and Associated
Infrastructure, Hucknall Town Football Club, Watnall Road, Hucknall
In accordance with the Council’s Policy for dealing with late matters in relation
to planning applications, (Minute No. D4.17, 1993/94 refers), officers
proceeded to give a verbal report as to additional comments received in
relation to the application as follows:Report Corrections
Firstly, there are a couple of corrections on the report. The total number of
comments received for the application was 80. With 69 in support and 11
objecting to the proposals.
Also, the second sentence of the final paragraph in the retail impact section of
the committee should state that it would not cross the significant adverse
threshold.
Petition and Briefing Note
We have received a petition in support of the application with 254 signatures
submitted by the secretary of Hucknall Town Football Club.

Page 7

The applicant has submitted a briefing note, which was sent to members. One
issue I would like to bring to members attention, that the report clearly states
the relocation of the football club is required by other permissions.
Tesco Objection
An objection has been received from Tesco on the following grounds:









There is inadequate assessment of the trading Impacts on Hucknall
Town Centre and without a robust assessment permission should not
be granted
The information that is available appears fundamentally flawed in
material respects
That there are two potentially sequentially preferable sites within
Hucknall Town Centre which have not been robustly reviewed
In assessing the ‘overall planning balance’ Officers place “very
significant weight” on a limited number of unjustifiable benefits. They
cannot reasonably outweigh the accepted breach of development plan
and other policies that seek to prevent harm to the town centre
The financial contribution to be made by Lidl towards town centre public
realm improvements breaches relevant legal provisions since officers
do not find that without it permission should be refused
That without an appropriate condition restricting the amount of space
within the proposed store that can be used for the sale of convenience
and comparison goods retailing permission should be refused.
The football club should be party to the Section 106.

Officer Response to Tesco Objection
The comments on the retail impact assessment have been appraised by the
Independent retail planning consultant, who have advised that Tesco’s
concerns (specifically in light of their lack of supporting evidence) would not
change their initial review: which is that the application passes the retail impact
assessment.
In terms of the sequential test:


Sandicliffe Ford, The Council does not have any evidence that would
contradict the landowner’s own position that the site is not available on
a freehold basis.



Piggins Croft – This is a Council owned site. Tesco do not provide any
justification or explanation for how current town centre parking could be
re-provided if less than a third of current spaces are retained. The
Council maintains that the site is unsuitable as parking still need to be
provided for the town centre as well as accommodating the store and its
parking requirements.

The development would create 40 full and new part time jobs.

Page 8

The contribution towards public realm in Hucknall town centre is considered to
be CIL compliant. This is set out in the Planning Committee report.
Conditions
Additional consideration has been given to the imposition of conditions relating
to the sale of convenience and comparison goods Accordingly, it is
recommended that a condition is appropriately worded to cover this aspect
and also to limit the stores flexibility in the new use class E:

14 The total Class A1 (retail) floorspace in the food store hereby permitted
shall not exceed 1,905 sq. m (GIA) and the net sales area shall not
exceed 1,265 sq. m. Of this, no more than 251sqm of the sales area
shall be used for comparison goods and no more than 1,005sqm shall
be used for the sale of convenience goods.
15. The development shall not be used for any other purpose, including any
other purpose in Class E of the Town and Country Planning (Use
Classes) Order 1987.
The applicant has also queried the conditions in relation to ‘no delivery on
bank holidays’ and following consultation with environmental health, this
element of the condition can be removed.
Finally, the proposed condition 12 is proposed to reworded to include the
words. The works shall be carried out as agreed in writing and be
implemented prior to the store opening.
Gary Goodhall and Julie White, in support of the application and on behalf of
the Applicant (sharing the 5-minute slot) and Councillor Dave Shaw as Ward
Councillor, took the opportunity to address the Committee in respect of this
matter. As per the agreed process, Members were then offered the
opportunity to clarify any points raised during the submissions as required.
It was moved and seconded that:
a) planning consent be granted in principle, subject to agreement by the
Applicant to the following two additional conditions.
o For a Traffic Regulation Order be provided along Watnall Road
and at the junctions of Watnall Road/Nabbs Lane and Watnall
Road/Ruffs Drive.
o To increase the S106 contribution towards Hucknall Town Centre
Public Realm to a minimum of £100,000.
b) as a result of a) above, the Assistant Director, Planning and Regulatory
Services be requested to liaise with the Applicant to ascertain
agreement of the two additional items as part of the planning consent,
and subject to agreement, delegated authority be granted to the
Committee Chairman to approve the application accordingly.

Page 9

P.38

Planning Appeal Decisions
Members were asked to note the recent Planning Appeal decisions as outlined
in the report.
RESOLVED
that the report be received and noted.

The meeting closed at 12.11 pm

Chairman.

Page 10

Agenda Item 4
BACKGROUND PAPERS AND AVAILABILITY OF PLANS
Under the terms of the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985
the Authority is required to list the background papers used in preparing all
recommendations relating to planning applications.
The background papers forming the planning application file include:
A

Planning Application file, incorporating consultation records, site
appraisal and records of meetings and telephone conversations.

B

Planning Policy

C

Local Resident Comments

D

Highway Authority Consultation

E

Environmental Health (ADC)

F

Severn Trent Water plc/Environment Agency

G

Parish Council

H

Local Societies

I

Government Circulars/PPGs

J

Listed Building Consultees

K

Other

L

Viability Information

Letters received prior to preparation of the Agenda are summarised to
indicate the main points and incorporated in the Report to the Members. Any
comments received after that date, but before 3pm of the day before
Committee, will be reported verbally.
The full text of all correspondence is available to Members.
Due to Covid-19 Background Papers are only available to view online.

s/planning/admin/procedures/iplanmanual/backgourndpapers

Page 11

This page is intentionally left blank

Site Visits Planning Committee

Members will be aware of the procedure regarding Site Visits as outlined
in the Councils Constitution.
Should any Planning Committee Member wish to visit any site on this
agenda they are advised to contact either the Director – Place and
Communities or the Assistant Director Planning and Regulatory Services
by 12 Noon on Friday 21st May 2021.
This can be done by either telephone or e-mail and should include the
reason as to the request for the site visit. The necessary arrangements
will then be made to obtain access to the site or an objector’s property, if
such is required.
Members are asked to use their own means of transport and observe
social distancing guidance time and date to be arranged.

T. Hodgkinson
Service Director – Place and Communities
Tel: 01623 457365
E-mail: t.hodgkinson@ashfield.gov.uk

s/planning/committee/sitevisit

Page 13

This page is intentionally left blank

PLANNING COMMITTEE – 26th May
2021
Page App No
Hucknall North
17-26 V/2020/0871

Applicant

Recommendation

Proposal

Location

Ashfield District
Council

Approve

Erection of 5 Dwellings

Land at
Barbara Square
Hucknall

W Westerman

Approve

69 Dwellings and Associated
Infrastructure, Engineering Works
and Open Space With Access From
Clare Road and Leamington Drive

Land at
Clare Road
Sutton in Ashfield

Sutton Central and New Cross
49-56 V/2020/0546
Mr D M Hollis

Approve

Application For Outline Planning
Permission With All Matters
Reserved For Demolition Of Former
Solicitors Offices And Erection Of A
Maximum Of 8 Town Houses (C3)

2-4
Market View
Market Place
Sutton In Ashfield

Sutton Junction and Harlow Wood
57-68 V/2020/0808
Mr L Marshall

Refuse

5 Detached Two Storey Dwellings

Cauldwell Livery Stables
Cauldwell Road
Sutton in Ashfield

Leamington
27-48 V/2020/0791

Page 15

S:\planning\Committe\CommiteeMeetings\2021\March

This page is intentionally left blank

V/2020/0871

MAP SCALE 1: 1250
CREATED DATE: 07/05/2021

Page 17
Ashfield District Council © Crown copyright and database right 2021. Ordnance Survey 100024849

COMMITTEE DATE

26/05/2021

APP REF

V/2020/0871

APPLICANT

A Kirkland

PROPOSAL

Erection of 5 Dwellings

LOCATION

Land at, Barbara Square, Hucknall, Nottingham

WEB-LINK

https://www.google.co.uk/maps/@53.0472038,-1.2158,16.75z

BACKGROUND PAPERS

WARD

Hucknall North

A, C, D, K

App Registered: 22/12/2020

Expiry Date: 15/02/2021

Consideration has been given to the Equalities Act 2010 in processing this
application.
This application has been referred to Planning Committee because the Council
is the applicant.
The Application
This is an application that seeks full planning consent for the demolition of existing
garages on Barbara Square and the construction of five dwellings each with
associated off-street parking and amenity space. The development comprises three
two bedrooms terraced properties and two three bedrooms semi-detached
properties.
Consultations
A site notices has been posted together with individual notification to surrounding
residents. Residents have been consulted on three separate occasions following
amendments to the layout of the scheme.
The following responses have been received:
Resident Comments:
First Consultation:
5 Letters of objection/concern received in respect of the following:
-

Overlooking impact
Overshadowing impact
Highway safety issues
o Increased traffic
o Increased on-street parking
o Access is inappropriate - too narrow/restricted

Page 18

-

o Increased pedestrian/vehicular conflict
o Condition of road is poor
Land is contaminated
Noise and disturbance during construction
Increased noise from future occupiers
Loss of trees
Neighbouring boundaries unstable
No need for further housing
Loss of views
Devaluation of surrounding properties

Second Consultation:
2x Letters of concern/objection in respect of the following:
-

Increased traffic
Disruption during construction
Inappropriate landscaping scheme
Loss of mature oak tree
Access to garage buildings at neighbouring properties prohibited
No need for further housing
Devaluation of surrounding properties

Third Consultation:
2x Letters of concern/objection from one resident in respect of the following:
-

Unclear how access is to be widened
Devaluation of surrounding properties

Ashfield District Council Tree Officer:
The arboricultural information supplied is considered satisfactory and development
can take place on this site keeping the trees safe. A condition should be attached to
any approval with regards to tree protection and information is required of any the
root protection measures for T1 (Oak Tree) which is worthy of retention.
Nottinghamshire Highways Authority:
The applicant has submitted drawing number 31468 510 02 which shows side by
side parking, dimensions and how vehicles can turn around within the site. The
existing footway is extended into the site and the width of the access and roadway is
acceptable at 4.8m. The Highway Authority would not wish to raise objection subject
to conditions.
Policy
Having regard to Section 38 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 the
main policy considerations are as follows:
National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) 2019:

Page 19

Part 5 – Delivering a Sufficient Supply of Homes
Part 11 – Making Effective Use of Land
Part 12 – Achieving Well Designed Places
Ashfield Local Plan Review (ALPR) 2002:
ST1 – Development
ST2 – Main Urban Area
EV8 – Trees and Woodland
HG5 – New Residential Development
SPD Residential Design Guide
SPD Residential Car Parking Standards
Relevant Planning History
None.
Comment:
The application site comprises of a block of six, single storey garages located in the
centre of the site, with the remainder of the site comprising of hardstanding and
scrub vegetation. A number of trees, including a mature Oak Tree lie within the
boundary of the application site. The site is located at the end of a cul de sac on
Barbara Square, Hucknall.
Existing residential development lies directly adjacent to the north, south and west of
the application site, whilst an area of public open space, known locally as the
Ranges, lies directly to the east of the site.
The main issues to consider as part of this proposal are the principle of the
development, the impact of the proposal on visual and residential amenity, as well as
highway safety.
Principle of Development:
The development site is located within the main urban area of Hucknall, where the
principle of development is considered acceptable, providing no other material
planning considerations indicate otherwise.
The Council is presently unable to demonstrate a five year housing land supply, and
therefore the presumption in favour of sustainable development applies unless any
adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the
benefits.
The site is owned by the Local Council. The applicant has confirmed that only one of
the six garages is currently occupied. Subsequently, limited income is collected by
the Council for the site, despite ongoing maintenance costs. Notice to vacate has
been served on the individual currently occupying one of the garage units.

Page 20

Paragraph 118 of the NPPF 2019 stipulates that substantial weight should be given
to the value of using suitable brownfield land within settlements for homes, and the
development of under utilised land, which amongst other things includes car parks
and lock-ups, should be promoted and supported where it would help to meet
identified housing need.
The proposal represents a modest, but nevertheless important boost to the districts
housing supply, providing five new residential units in a sustainable, main urban area
location. The scheme would also provide a number of economic benefits that would
be generated during the construction of the dwellings and occupation thereafter.
Having regard to the presumption in favour of development, as outlined in paragraph
11 of the Framework, the principle of the proposed development is considered
acceptable provided all other material planning considerations can be appropriately
satisfied.
Visual Amenity:
As previously mentioned, the area surrounding the application site is predominantly
residential in nature. Properties within the vicinity of the site vary in terms of size,
type and design, but are predominantly two storey in height and comprise of
detached and semi-detached properties. A care home is also situated to the northwest of the site.
The proposed development will comprise of three, two-storey terraced properties
(House Type A) and two, two-storey semi-detached properties with rooms in the roof
space (House Type B). Although the proposed development scheme does not follow
the linear pattern of development along Barbara Square, the layout of the scheme
has been designed to respond to the abnormal shape of the site and the requirement
to retain a right of access to two garage buildings sited within the rear garden spaces
of 138 and 140 Annesley Road.
The dwellings are to be constructed from red facing brick and grey roof tiles, and will
incorporate stone cills and brick headers into the design. Dwellings directly to the
south and west of the site have been constructed from comparable materials, whilst
the design features proposed to be incorporated into the scheme are visible on
properties sited directly to the north of the site. In this respect, it is considered that
the proposed development would assimilate well into the street scene and the area.
Areas of private amenity space to the rear of the dwellings are proposed to be
enclosed through the installation of 1.8m high timber fencing panels, gravel boards
and concrete posts. Such boundary treatments are typical of the area. The area
forward of the dwellings is proposed to consist of low level planting to further improve
the appearance of the development.
The site comprises of a number of mature trees which are presently planted around
its perimeter and are considered to offer a positive contribution to the visual amenity

Page 21

of the area. These trees are proposed to be retained due to their overall health and
amenity value as part of the development, and an Arboricultural Impact Assessment,
Arboricultural Method Statement and Tree Protection plan have been submitted with
the application to demonstrate their protection during demolition and construction
works. As requested by the Council’s Tree Officer, a condition requiring the works to
be carried out in accordance with the details submitted is suggested to be attached
to any permission.
Residential Amenity:
Concerns have been raised by local residents in respect of loss of light and privacy
arising from the proposed development scheme.
The proposed dwellings are to be sited approximately 14m from the nearest
residential property located to the north of the site at 61 Barbara Square It is
considered that due to the siting and overall size and scale of the proposed
dwellings, the proposal will not result in any undue overshadowing or massing
impact on nearby residents.
In regards to the potential overlooking impact, the Council’s Residential Design
Guide SPD 2014 requires a minimum of 21m between main aspect windows. And
12m between main aspect and secondary windows. The terraced properties known
as ‘House Type A’ will face in a northerly direction towards properties on Barbara
Square, with the main aspect windows sited on the front elevation facing towards the
side elevation of no. 61, which has a secondary window at first floor level facing
towards the site and a conservatory to the rear. The separation distance between the
proposed main aspect windows in ‘House Type A’ and the secondary window
measures approximately 20m, whilst the separation distance between the main
aspect windows and the conservatory measures approximately 22m.
‘House Type B’ are to face in an easterly direction towards ‘House Type A’ and will
have main aspect windows sited in the rear elevation facing towards properties on
Annesley Road. The nearest dwelling is proposed to be in excess of 30m from these
windows, meeting the minimum separation requirements.
In light of the above, it is considered that the proposed development would not give
rise to an unacceptable overlooking impact on neighbouring residential occupiers.
In respect of future occupiers, each of the dwellings provides an acceptable level of
internal space to adequately accommodate the family of household which is likely to
occupy it. In addition to this, each dwelling benefits from an area of outdoor amenity
space in line with the minimum requirements outlined in the Council’s Residential
Design Guide SPD 2014.
Concerns have been raised in respect of increased noise and disturbance arising
from the proposal during construction and occupation thereafter. A construction
management plan has been submitted with the application which details that

Page 22

construction works would take place between the hours of 8am to 6pm Monday to
Friday and 8am to 1pm Saturdays, which are typical working hours. Any noise
emitted from the dwellings once occupied will likely be domestic in nature and
therefore will not be at odds with noise emitted from surrounding residential
properties. In any event, should the proposal cause any noise nuisance during or
after construction, such matters can be dealt with under other legislative powers.
Whilst concerns have also been raised regarding the devaluation of neighbouring
properties and loss of views, these do not form material planning considerations.
Highway Safety:
Concerns have been raised by local residents in regards to increased
traffic/congestion and on-street parking along Barbara Square as a result of the
proposal, in addition concerns regarding the condition of the highway and the width
of the access into the site.
At present, Barbara Square in this location culminates with a turning head off which
the development site is accessed. As mentioned above, concerns have been raised
regarding the condition of the highway. The applicant has therefore agreed to
resurface the turning head at the culmination of Barbara Square as part of the
proposal to improve the condition of the highway.
In addition to the above, to reduce the likelihood of pedestrian and vehicular conflict
within the site and at the access, the applicant has proposed to extend the existing
footway on Barbara Square into the site. To accommodate segregated vehicular and
pedestrian accesses, the width of the site access is to be increased to 4.8m in width.
This will be facilitated by utilising a small portion of grassland adjacent to the site
which falls within the ownership of the Local Council. Extending the width of the
access will have no implications on the adjoining footpath used my members of the
public to access the Ranges.
Each dwelling will be afforded two off-street parking spaces, in accordance with the
Council’s Residential Car Parking Standards SPD 2014 for two/three-bedroom
properties. In addition to this, to alleviate concerns regarding increased on-street
parking along Barbara Square, two visitor parking spaces have been provided within
the development.
The Highway Authority have confirmed that the site access is of adequate width to
accommodate the proposed development, and has also confirmed that the
development provides sufficient off-street parking provision with adequate
maneuvering space to allow vehicles to enter and egress the site in a forward gear.
It is therefore considered that the proposal will not result in any detrimental impact on
highway safety in this location, nor would it give rise to any substantial impact on
highway capacity.

Page 23

Conclusion:
The Council are presently unable to demonstrate a five year housing land supply,
and as such, the presumption in favour of sustainable development applies unless
any adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the
benefits.
The proposed development site offers the opportunity for the construction of five new
residential dwellings in a sustainable, main urban area location, which will also
contribute to the districts social housing stock providing social benefits, as well as
economic benefits during the construction of the dwellings and occupation thereafter.
The proposed development scheme does not raise any significant concerns with
regards to the impact upon the visual amenity of the locality or upon the residential
amenity of existing and future occupiers. Furthermore, each dwelling is afforded
adequate off-street parking provision, and the cumulative impact of an additional five
residential units on the highway network is deemed to be insignificant.
It is therefore recommended this application be granted planning permission, subject
to the below conditions:

Recommendation: Grant Conditional Consent

CONDITIONS
1. The development hereby approved shall be begun before the expiration
of 3 years from the date of this permission.
2. The materials and finishes to be used for the external elevations and
roof of the hereby approved dwellings shall be 'Burghley Red Rustic'
facing bricks and 'Sandtoft Calderdale' roof tiles in slate grey as per the
submitted information, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local
Planning Authority.
3. The hereby permitted development shall be carried out in accordance
with the submitted Arboricultural Impact Assessment, Arboricultural
Method Statement and Tree Protection Plan (dated April 2021).
4. The hereby permitted development shall be carried out in accordance
with the recommendations contained within the submitted Preliminary
Risk Assessment & Geo-Environmental Assessment (dated January
2021).
5. The hereby permitted development shall be carried out in accordance
with the submitted Construction Management Plan (report no.
311774/SH).

Page 24

6. No part of the development hereby permitted shall be brought into use
until all drives and any parking or turning areas are surfaced in a hardbound material. The surfaced drives and any parking or turning areas
shall then be maintained in such hard-bound material for the life of the
development.
7. No part of the development herby permitted shall be brought into use
until pedestrian visibility splays of 2.0 meters x 2.0 meters are provided
on each side of the vehicle access. These measurements are taken from
and along the highway boundary. The area of land within these splays
shall be maintained free from all obstruction over 0.6 meters above the
carriageway level at all times.
8. No part of the development hereby permitted shall be brought into use
until the access is constructed with provision to prevent the discharge
of surface water from the driveway area to the public highway. The
provision to prevent the discharge of surface water to the public
highway shall then be retained for the life of the development.
9. This permission shall be read in accordance with the following plans:
Proposed Site Layout Plan, Drawing No. 3146851002 Rev F, Received
12/04/21; House Type A - Floor Plans and Elevations, Drawing No.
3146851003 Rev A, Received 21/12/20; House Type B - Floor Plans and
Elevations, Drawing No. 3146851004 Rev A, Received 21/12/20; Drainage
Plan, Drawing No. 8697-GCA-XX-XX-DR-C-101, Received 14/05/21. The
development shall thereafter be undertaken in accordance with these
plans unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning
Authority.

REASONS
1. To comply with the requirements of Section 91 of the Town and Country
Planning Act 1990 as amended.
2. To ensure the satisfactory appearance of the development.
3. To safeguard the visual amenity of the area.
4. To ensure that the site, when developed, is free from contamination, in
the interests of safety.
5. In order to minimise disturbance to surrounding properties.
6. To reduce the possibility of deleterious material being deposited on the
public highway (loose stones etc).

Page 25

7. In the interests of highway safety.
8. To ensure surface water from the site is not deposited on the public
highway causing dangers to road users.
9. To ensure that the development takes the form envisaged by the Local
Planning Authority when determining the application.

INFORMATIVE
1. The applicant/developer is strongly advised to ensure compliance with
all planning conditions, if any, attached to the decision. Failure to do so
could result in LEGAL action being taken by the Ashfield District
Council at an appropriate time, to ensure full compliance. If you require
any guidance or clarification with regard to the terms of any planning
conditions then do not hesitate to contact the Development & Building
Control Section of the Authority on Mansfield (01623 450000).
2. The development makes it necessary to carry out works within the
public highway. These works shall be constructed to the satisfaction of
the Highway Authority. You are, therefore, required to contact the
County Council’s Highways Area Office tel. 0300 500 8080 to arrange for
these works to be carried out.
3. The contractor must ensure compliance with current legislation on
noise and dust control including the Environmental Protection Act 1990
and the Control of Pollution Act 1974. Relevant Codes of Practice set out
procedures for dealing with the control of noise on construction and
demolition sites are contained in BS5228: 2009 Noise and Vibration
Control on Construction and Open Sites.

Page 26

THIS DRAWING AND THE BUILDING WORKS DEPICTED ARE THE COPYRIGHT OF ARMSTRONG BURTON
ARCHITECTS AND MAY NOT BE REPRODUCED EXCEPT BY WRITTEN PERMISSION. THE CONTRACTOR IS
TO CHECK AND VERIFY ALL BUILDING AND SITE DIMENSIONS, LEVELS AND SEWER INVERT AT
CONNECTION POINTS AND ALL DISCREPANCIES TO BE REPORTED TO THE ARCHITECT. THE DRAWING
MUST BE READ IN CONJUNCTION WITH AND CHECKED AGAINST RELEVANT STRUCTURAL OR OTHER
SPECIALIST DRAWINGS. USE ONLY WRITTEN DIMENSIONS - DO NOT SCALE DRAWINGS.
NOTE:

1:1250

0

50

100

125m

Page 27
ROAD

ADENE
WARN

LEAMINGTON DRIVE

163.569

ROAD
163.45

CLARE

163.44

163.53

163.55

Stmp

163.62

Gy
163.42

KIRKBY ROAD

163.51

D NURS

IMARY AN

N PR
AMINGTO

LE

ADEMY

ERY AC

THE SITE

KINGS MILL ROAD - A3

8

Op

Asco
p

t
Op

lieu

As

Che
am
ltenh

Op

G'w
p

ood

Op helt
en
p

ha
m

C

As

Asco

t

As

Yelm

As

ow
Sand

Op

ndow
n Sa p

n

Op

Che
p

ltenh

am

u
Beaulie

Opp

Beaulieu
As

Opp

G'wood

G'wood

As

Cheltenham
As

Yelm

Opp

Opp

G'wood

As

Winchester Winchester

G'wood

Op

G'w
p

ood

ton

Opp

As

Opp

As

As

Cheltenham

Wal

Opp

As

Yelm

As

Cheltenham

As

Cheltenham

Cheltenham

Beau
p

BCP

Cheltenham
As

Ascot

Opp

As

Beaulieu

Winchester Winchester

As

Cheltenham

Opp

Opp

As

Winchester Winchester

Newmarket

As

As

As

Sandow

As

r

As

che

As

As

As

Win

As

Cheltenham

G'wood

am

ltenh

Opp

Opp

n Sandow

Opp

G'wood

Beaulieu

n
n Sandow

G'wood

As

As

Opp

ste

Beaulieu

Opp

Ascot

Che

m

Opp

Opp

As

Cheltenham

Beaulieu

Cheltenham

r

st

er

Ascot

che
Win

r
r Wincheste
Wincheste As

Opp

rket
Newma
As

Opp

As

York

Opp

York

As

As

n Sandow
Sandow Opp

Yelm

York

As

lton
Wa

Opp

n

Yelm

Opp

Yelm

Opp

Ascot

G'wood

Opp

Winchester

RWP

As

Winchester

Yelm

As

le

Beaulieu

Da

Da

Opp le

Opp

As

As

Sandown Sand
Opp

As

6

Winchester

C

As

am
ltenh

Ascot

Opp

n

Opp

As

As

A

s

Che

Beaulieu

Sandow
n Sandow

As

Che

Opp

Opp

Yelm

As

G'wood

As

he

ham

C

am
ltenh

As

As

Yelm

Op

Che
p
O

li
au
Bepp

G'w
ood

eu

ood

15

G'w

As

Win
ch

Opp
Opp

BCP

Opp

Sandown

1

Walton

Opp

Sandown

r

Opp

este

Opp

Cheltenham

Childrens
play area

m

Cheltenha

As

este
r W
inch

Winche

u

G'wood

As

ham

Yelm

As

Chelten

4

Chelten

A

s

Beaulie

As

As

m

ha

n
lte

As

As

Ascot

Opp

ster Win
chester

Opp

As

Beaulieu

Yelm

ltenh
am

5

own

3

As

p

As

2

Sandown Sand
Opp

As

As

Walton

A

lm
Ye s

own

O

rk
Yopp

Yelm

As

O

p

rk
Yo

As

m

d
oo
'wp

Opp

Opp

Cheltenha

G'wood

Sandown
Sandown Sandown Opp

Opp

O

e
ch
in
W pp

As

own
Sandown Sand
Opp
A

ch

t
es

er

Da

Yelm
Opp

le

Sa

en

own
Sandown Sand
Opp
As

Sandown Sand
Opp
As

own
Walton
As

Da

le

As

Ch

elt

pp

As

Yo
Beaulieu

n Sa
Opp

ow

nd

n

ow

nd

O

Opp

85

rk
Yo

Y

As

ork

Opp

Yelm

As

76

As

Opp
Opp

Yelm

Opp

As

York

Opp

York

As

York

As

York

Opp

York

l netting

York

5m high bal

As

MUGA

York

urt

As

Netball Co

ham

rk
Yo

Yelm

BCP
Chelten

As

York

86

5m high bal

75

rk

As

lm

Ye

As

ha

m

As

Opp

46

in
W
s

er

Opp

st

45
own
own Sand
Opp
Sandown Sand
Opp

G

16

Sandown Sand
Opp

As

102

l netting

Yelm

1

Op

O

u

au
lie

4
2

Winchester

rk
Yo pp

Be

3

lt

he

Opp

ter

ches

ch
Win

Beaulieu

s

A

4
3

ha
en

A

2

2

Opp

1

1

in
r W
este As

m

Yelm

6
5

rk
Yo s

l netting
5m high bal

RWP

5
1

Sandow

lto
n

a

Opp

W

n Sandow

s

A

own

n

Opp

York

As

Cheltenham

l netting

5m high bal
6

n

Opp

Opp

l netting
5m high bal

n Sandow

Ascot

Opp

Road

BCP

As

As

Sandow

G'wood

Opp

As

Opp

Opp

r Wincheste
Wincheste As

As

Beaulieu

Beaulieu

Yelm

nha
Chelte

As

Ascot

u

Sutton

Ascot

Yelm

lieu

au
lie

Opp

As

As

u
Bea

Beaulieu

As

Yelm

Be

As

Yelm

19080

1:1250@A1

SEPT 2020

CR

CC

PLANNING

02

l netting

5m high bal

W WESTERMAN LIMITED
CLARE ROAD
SUTTON IN ASHFIELD
LOCATION PLAN

ARMSTRONGBURTONARCHITECTS
A
M E M B E R
O F
T H E
A R M S T R O N G
B U R T O N
G R O U P
ARMSTRONG BURTON ARCHITECTS, MILFORD HOUSE, 260 LICHFIELD ROAD, BIRMINGHAM, B74 2UH
T:0121 323 2332 E:INFO@ARMSTRONGBURTON.CO.UK W:ARMSTRONGBURTON.COM

COMMITTEE DATE

26/05/2021

APP REF

V/2020/0791

APPLICANT

W Westerman

PROPOSAL

69 Dwellings and Associated Infrastructure, Engineering
Works and Open Space with Access from Clare Road and
Leamington Drive

LOCATION

Land at Clare Road, Sutton in Ashfield, Nottinghamshire

WEB-LINK

https://www.google.com/maps/@53.1148011,-1.2637262,16z

BACKGROUND PAPERS

WARD

Leamington

A, B, D, E & K

App Registered: 18/11/2020

Expiry Date: 17/02/2021

Consideration has been given to the Equalities Act 2010 in processing this
application.
This application has been referred to Planning Committee as the proposal
forms a departure from the local development plan.
The Application
This is a full application which seeks planning consent for the construction of 69
dwellings with associated infrastructure and works on land off Clare Road. The site
lies due south of Sutton in Ashfield centre, to the south of Clare Road and north of
the A38, filling the gap between the two. Access to the site is proposed to be taken
via Clare Road and Leamington Drive.
Consultations
A site notice has been posted together with individual notification to surrounding
residents and businesses. The proposal has also been advertised in the local press.
The comments received are summarised below:
Resident Comments:
No letters of objection or concern have been received from local residents or
businesses as part of the consultation process.
ADC Environmental Health (Air Quality):
No objection to the development but recommend a planning condition requiring the
developer to submit a dust management plan for the construction phase of the
development to be agreed by the council prior to any development on site.

Page 28

ADC Environmental Health (Noise):
The Noise Impact Assessment submitted with the application has been assessed.
Noise Monitoring was undertaken at position 1 and 2 between the 10 th July and 16th
July 2020. The dominant noise sources identified were from road traffic, plant and
equipment from the Old Ashfield. Mitigation measures have been applied to the
scheme to achieve acceptable internal noise levels within the proposed dwellings.
Recommend conditions to limit disturbances to neighbouring residents during the
construction phase.
ADC Places and Localities:
The applicant will need to remove provision of seating and mixed dense planting to
the open space area to improve natural surveillance. Defensive planting and open
fence structure should be provided along the west edge of the Gas easement
section. Street lighting should be provided along the Right of Way. The details for
the boundary treatment are generally considered acceptable. The applicant will need
to provide details of the proposed management arrangements for the open space
and SuDs system.
In terms of Section 106 contributions, these are as follows:
•
•

£138,000 towards play and young people’s provision at Hardwick Lane
Recreation Ground and/or the Twitchell. This includes a maintenance
payment of £51,750 over 15 years.
£70,000 towards public realm improvements in Sutton Town Centre.

NCC Highway Authority:
The proposed development is to be served by two points of access; via an extension
of Clare Road and by a second access via an extension of Leamington Drive.
The development traffic passes a school on Clare Road and safety measures - due
to children crossing in this area with a potential increase in vehicles/vehicle speeds needs to be considered. The applicant has agreed to provide traffic calming features
on Clare Road, at the junctions with Spa Close and Warnadene Road, to address
safety concerns due to the close proximity of the school.
The existing Leamington Drive/Warnadene Road junction is a concern as its
intensification of use may result in vehicular conflict as it is unclear who has priority
on the minor roads. The applicant has however agreed to provide
alterations/improvements to the Leamington Drive/Warnadene Road junction. This
will require the existing bus stop adjacent to the northern boundary of the triangular
piece of land between Leamington Drive and Warnadene Road to be relocated to a
point agreed with Notts CC Transport and Travel Services.
No highway concerns are raised subject to the implementation of the proposed
highway and junction improvements.

Page 29

NCC Public Rights of Way:
The public right of way through the site carries the status of a bridleway and as such
can be used by people on foot, whilst riding or leading a horse and on bicycles. The
scheme proposes to divert a section of the bridleway so that it runs adjacent to the
public open space and not along the new estate road. If the design of any proposed
development requires the legally recorded route of the RoW to be diverted because
it cannot be accommodated on the legal line within the scheme, then this should be
addressed under the relevant provisions within the Town and Country Planning Act
1990 for the diverting/stopping up of public rights of way affected by development.
Any planting adjacent to the bridleway should be considered to ensure that the trees
do not overhang or obstruct the bridleway as they mature
NCC Strategic Planning:
No objections from a minerals perspective, although a waste audit should be
provided. Strategic highways contributions should also be sought, along with a
contribution of £20,000 for bus stop improvements to AS0182 and AS0710 Barnes
Crescent.
NCC Education:
Primary
The development is located in the Sutton Town Primary Planning Area and would
generate 15 additional primary school places. Based on current pupil forecasts,
there is a projected surplus of places in the Sutton Town primary planning area and
the impact of the proposed development alone would not lead to a deficit in provision
of primary places. However, the County Council has been consulted on a further five
planning applications totalling 912 dwellings (192 primary places) within the planning
area which remain to be determined. If approved, these applications, taken together
with commitments from three recent permissions, would result in a deficit of 93
spaces.
93 primary school places charged at £20,592 per place, amounts to £1,948,536. As
this proposal amounts to 7% of the projected deficit, the County Council therefore
requests a contribution of £136,397 (7% of £1,948,536), which is based on the cost
per pupil of providing a new school in the Sutton Town primary planning area.
Secondary
Based on current data there is a projected surplus of places within the secondary
catchment area. The development would not lead to a deficit in provision. No
contributions towards secondary education are sought at this time.
Local Lead Flood Authority:
No objections, subject to a planning condition ensuring that the drainage scheme
accords with the principles set out within the Flood Risk Assessment.

Page 30

Clinical Commissioning Group:
A development of this nature would result in increased service demand and all
practices in the area are working at capacity. Accordingly, the proposal would trigger
the need to provide health related section 106 funding amounting to £37,389.37
which is proportionate to the housing development size. The contribution would be
invested in enhancing infrastructure capacity.
Police Architectural Liaison Officer:
Having examined the documentation submitted under this application, it appears the
developer has considered many facets of good design. A system of active frontages
is apparent, together with the efforts to improve the informal/passive surveillance
opportunities on site; dual aspect dwellings are used where appropriate.
Policy
Having regard to Section 38 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 the
main policy considerations are as follows:
Ashfield Local Plan Review (ALPR) 2002 – Saved Policies
• ST1: Development
• ST2: Main Urban Areas
• EV8: Trees and Woodlands
• HG3: Housing Density.
• HG4: Affordable Housing.
• HG5: New Residential Development.
• HG6: Open Space in Residential Developments.
• TR2: Cycling Provision in New Developments.
• TR6: Developer Contributions to Transport Improvements.
• RC2: Open Areas in Main Urban Areas and Named Settlements.
• RC3: Formal Open Space.
• RC8: Recreational Routes.
National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) 2019
• The Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development.
• Part 5: Delivering a Sufficient Supply of Homes.
• Part 8 Promoting Healthy and Safe Communities.
• Part 9 Promoting Sustainable Transport.
• Part 11: Making Effective Use of Land.
• Part 12: Achieving Well-Designed Places.
• Part 14: Meeting the Challenge of Climate Change, Flooding and Coastal
Change.
• Part 15: Conserving and Enhancing the Natural Environment.

Page 31

Guidance
• Ashfield Affordable Housing SPD 2009.
• Ashfield Residential Design SPD 2014.
• Ashfield Residential Car Parking Standards SPD 2014.
• Nottinghamshire County Council Highways Design Guide 2021.
• National Design Guide 2019
Relevant Planning History
No previous planning history.
Comment:
The Site
The application site measures approximately 3ha in area and comprises of
unmanaged woodland and scrub sited between Clare Road to the north, and the A38
to the south. The topography of the site is relatively flat. An existing bridleway
passes through the site close to the eastern boundary, linking the footway on Kings
Mill Road to Clare Road.
Immediately to the north is existing residential development on Clare Road and
Leamington Drive which backs onto the development site. To the east of the site is
Leamington Primary School and commercial development lies to the west. To the
south of the site beyond the A38 is the recent Larwood development which was
constructed by the applicant.
Main Considerations
The main issues to consider in the determination of this application are:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

The Principle of Development
Housing Density
Layout, Appearance and Scale
Residential Amenity
Highways Safety
Ecology and Trees
Flood Risk and Drainage
Other Issues
Developer Contributions and ‘CIL’ Compliance
Planning Balance and Conclusions

The Principle of Development
The application site is located within the main urban area of Sutton in Ashfield,
where under the provision of policy ST2 of the ALPR, the principle of residential
development is considered acceptable, provided all other material planning
considerations can be satisfied.

Page 32

Despite being relatively dense with unmanaged vegetation cover, the majority of the
site is subject to policy RC2 (ke) which designates the land as an ‘Open Area.’ A
small proportion of the site along the eastern boundary is subject to policy RC3 (Sc)
which designates this portion of the site as ‘Formal Open Space’.
With the exception of the bridleway which lies within the area designated as formal
open space, there are no other indications of the formal open space use and
visually, presents itself as unmanaged vegetation and scrub which appears to be
contiguous with the remainder of the application site designated as an ‘open area’.
Although the proposed development would be contrary to policy RC2 insofar that the
scheme would result in the partial loss of an existing open area between the
settlements of Kirkby in Ashfield and Sutton in Ashfield, the scheme retains a tree
belt measuring 30m in width along the southern boundary of the site, which when
taken together with the equally considerable tree belt on the southern side of the
A38, adjacent to the Larwood Park development, provides a substantial buffer and
visual break between the two settlement, which is considered acceptable.
Whilst the eastern portion of the site is designated as formal open space under
policy RC3, the proposals map identifies the majority of the formal open space under
this designation as lying to the east of Leamington Primary Academy and forming
part of the formal school playing field. The land within the application site that shares
this designation is physically separated from the school and not within the ownership
of the school and has never formed a role as formal open space either as a standalone facility or as part of the neighbouring school, as required under the provisions
of the policy. Consequently, the loss of this small portion of formal open space will
have no negative impact upon the type, quality and general availability of formal
open space within the locality.
Housing Density
The developable area excluding the significant landscape buffer to the south of the
site and the proposed SuDs equates to approximately 2.3ha, resulting in a housing
density of approximately 30 dwellings per hectare. This achieves the minimum
requirement set out in Policy HG3 of the Local Plan.
Layout, Appearance and Scale
The proposed layout responds to the site’s relatively linear form and will feature one
spine road running through the middle of the site with dwellings fronting onto the
road on either side. The layout provides a continuation of the existing pattern of
development that is prevalent in the local area and the new homes will enjoy
conventional front to front and back to back relationships ensuring that the dwellings
have sufficient separation distance between them, with areas of landscaping to the
front and rear. Active frontages have also been incorporated in the design to improve
informal surveillance opportunities on site and dual aspect dwellings are also used
where appropriate.

Page 33

The route of the existing bridleway is broadly retained with only a minor deviation to
account for the fact that Clare Road would be extended to the south.
The design of the dwellings are modern, and incorporate a mixed pallet of materials
including a variety of red facing bricks, off-white render and red and grey roof tiles.
Brick headers and stone cills are also incorporated into the design of dwellings. The
proposed materials are relatively sympathetic to the wider area, which features a
number of different styles. The scale of the development is mainly two storey with
some 2 ½ storey dwellings in the core of the site. This scale of development reflects
the wider area. Boundary treatments will primarily comprise of 1.8m high close
boarded fencing. 1.8m high brick walls are also incorporated into the scheme where
property boundaries lie directly adjacent to the proposed public highway.
The existing tree belt along the southern edge of the site is to be retained as part of
the scheme to provide a substantial and verdant buffer to the A38. Further, a
comprehensive landscaping scheme will help make the development more attractive
and soften views of the site. The open space area will have existing trees retained
and receive supplementary planting. This green infrastructure and well considered
development layout, ensures that the proposal can be integrated into the site and its
immediate setting without undue impact on the visual amenity of the local area.
The layout, appearance, design and scale is considered to be in keeping with the
surrounding vicinity. Accordingly, there are no concerns surrounding the
development affecting the character and appearance of the area.
Residential Amenity
No concerns have been raised by local residents in respect of the proposed
development.
In regard to existing residential occupiers to the north of the site, it is considered that
due to the siting of the proposed dwellings, the scheme will not give rise to any
undue impact upon the amenity of nearby residents by virtue of massing or
overshadowing. Additionally, all minimum separation distances between main aspect
windows, as outlined within the Council’s Residential Design Guide SPD 2014, are
adhered to, ensuring an appropriate level of privacy is retained for neighbouring
residents.
A construction management plan condition will be used to limit disturbance during
the construction phase of the development and will include working hours to alleviate
disturbance to nearby residents.
The proposed development would provide an acceptable standard of living for future
residents. The dwellings are laid out to ensure they each receive sufficient light and
privacy. Internally, the development would meet the National Minimum Space
Standards; whilst externally, 95% of the garden areas would meet the minimum

Page 34

requirements with the remaining 5% of gardens falling marginally below the required
standards by a couple of square metres.
Given the proximity of the site to the A38, commercial development to the west and a
primary school to the east, a Noise Impact Assessment has been submitted with the
application. 24 hour noise surveys were carried at two locations within the site to
account for these different noise sources. The survey and subsequent assessment
of the findings indicates that attenuation will be required during day time and night
time periods to achieve both internal and external standards which are acceptable.
Accordingly, appropriate internal and external standards can be achieved through
the use of specific glazing standards combined with a 2.5m high acoustic fence for
the gardens facing south onto the A38. The Council’s Environmental Health officer
has confirmed that the mitigation measures proposed are acceptable in ensuring an
adequate level of amenity can be obtained for future occupiers of the development.
An Air Quality Assessment has also been submitted. The report finds that no
particular mitigation measures are required. The Council’s Environmental Health
officer has confirmed that the site is suitable for residential development and that the
proposal would not result in a breach of Air Quality Objectives.
Highways:
Policy ST1 of the ALPR 2002 sets out that, amongst other matters, development will
be permitted where it does not adversely affect highway safety, or the capacity of the
transport system. In a similar vein, Paragraph 109 of the NPPF 2019 states that
development should only be prevented or refused on highways ground if there would
be an unacceptable impact on highway safety, or where the residual cumulative
impacts on the road network would be severe.
Access to the site will be taken via extensions to Clare Road and Leamington Drive,
with the site access road and footways tying in with the existing carriageway and
footways. Swept path analysis demonstrates that all vehicles requiring access to the
site, including large service vehicles, can be accommodated safely.
As the development traffic is proposed to pass a school on Clare Road, the applicant
has agreed to provide traffic calming features on Clare Road at the junctions with
Spa Close and Warnadene Road, to address safety concerns due to the close
proximity of the school.
Improvement works are also proposed to the existing Leamington Drive/Warnadene
Road junction which has an unusual arrangement. The proposed works would widen
the existing access route between Warnadene Road and Leamington Drive so that it
has a 5.5m wide carriageway and a 2.0m wide footway. Appropriate radii and
visibility splays can be achieved and the works can be delivered within the highway
boundary. The works will require the existing bus stop adjacent to the northern
boundary of the triangular piece of land between Leamington Drive and Warnadene

Page 35

Road to be relocated to a point agreed with Nottinghamshire County Council
Transport and Travel Services.
The Highway Authority have confirmed that they are satisfied with both the junction
improvement works at Leamington Drive/Warnadene Road and the traffic calming
features on Clare Road.
The applicant has submitted a Transport Statement, which models the capacity of
the existing road network and the impact of traffic from the proposed development.
The Highway Authority are in agreement with the overall conclusion that the
development will not have a significant or unacceptable impact on capacity or road
safety of the existing network. On the basis of this, it is considered that the
development will not have a detrimental impact upon the existing highway network.
The car parking for each dwelling would be provided in accordance with the Councils
Car Parking SPD. Acceptable pedestrian visibility details have also been shown to
private drives and adjacent to boundaries.
It is therefore considered that the application is acceptable in highways safety terms
and would not have an adverse impact on the area or surrounding road network.
Public Right of Way:
An existing bridleway, known as Kirkby in Ashfield Bridleway 59, runs through the
eastern part of the site, linking the footway on Kings Mill Road to Clare Road. A
section of the bridleway is to be diverted as part of the proposed development so
that it runs adjacent to an area of proposed public open space and not along the new
estate road. This will need to be addressed under the relevant provisions within the
Town and Country Planning Act 1990 for the diverting/stopping up of public rights of
way affected by development and an application under this act would need to be
made and would be subject to a separate application.
Ecology and Trees
The application is supported by an Ecology Report and Tree Survey. The Ecology
Report does not identify the presence of any protected species on the site, although
it has made a number of recommendations in relation to mitigation and enhancement
measures. These are to be subject to planning conditions and includes, amongst
others, further surveys for bats and birds prior to the commencement of the
development.
The site contains a number of trees and therefore tree loss is an inevitability as part
of the proposal. None of the trees on site have any statutory protection and none
were categorised as being of ‘high quality’ when assessed as part of the tree survey.
The report identifies 10 individual trees and 5 groups with the most notable being a
large mature elm on the eastern portion of the southern boundary. Whilst the trees
within the central core of the site would be lost in order to facilitate the development
scheme, trees on the southern boundary, including the large elm, would be retained
to provide a verdant buffer between the development and the A38.

Page 36

Flood Risk and Drainage
The application site is located within Flood Zone 1 (Low Risk of Flooding, 1 in 1000
years). Due to the site area, a Flood Risk Assessment (FRA) has been submitted
along with a Drainage Strategy. The FRA notes that the site will drain its surface
water to new balancing pond located to the south east corner of the site.
The Local Lead Flood Authority has assessed the proposals and found them to be
acceptable, subject to a planning condition requiring full drainage details to be
submitted. On the basis of the information received, it is considered that the site
would not be at risk of, or result in an increased risk of flooding to the surrounding
area
Other Issues
Climate Change
Opportunities for reducing climate change impacts have been reflected in the design
of the development proposal. All dwellings are to be fitted with a water saving feature
in the form of a slim-line water butt. Each butt will have a capacity of 100L. The
infrastructure for Electric Vehicle Charging points is also proposed to be installed for
all four bedroom properties on the development. However to ensure that all
properties benefit from the infrastructure, a condition will be applied for all the
dwellings to have the capacity to install electric charging points.
Developer Contributions and ‘CIL’ Compliance
The requirements of the CIL Regulations are that a planning obligation can only be a
reason to grant planning permission provided that it is necessary to make the
development acceptable in planning terms; directly related to the development; and
fairly and reasonably related in scale and kind to the development. A number of
developer obligations are required to be included in the s106 agreement. These are
detailed below:
Affordable Housing
Policy HG4 of the ALPR sets out that a minimum of 10% dwellings should be
provided as affordable. The applicant is proposing to provide a total of 7 affordable
dwellings on site.
Bus Stop Improvements
A contribution of £20,000 towards the upgrade of two bus stops has been agreed by
the applicant. These are the AS0182 and AS0710 at Barnes Crescent.
Education
Nottinghamshire County Council Education have requested a primary education
contribution of £136,397 which the applicant has agreed to.

Page 37

Healthcare
The Clinical Commissioning Group have requested a financial contribution of
£37,389.37 which the applicant has agreed to.
Public Open Space and Maintenance Contribution
The applicant has agreed to a contribution of £138,000 towards play and young
people’s provision at Hardwick Lane Recreation Ground and/or the Twitchell, which
is worked out on the basis of £2,000 per dwelling.
Public Realm
A contribution of £35,000 has been negotiated and agreed to be paid towards public
realm improvements in Sutton Town Centre which is considered to be reasonable in
kind and scale to the proposed development.
Monitoring Contribution
The updated CIL legislation allows for a Section 106 monitoring fee to be charged.
This will amount to £1,000 and will cover the Councils fees for monitoring payment of
the Section 106.
Planning Balance and Conclusion
The NPPF states that proposals should be considered in the context of the
presumption of sustainable development, which is defined by economic, social and
environmental dimensions and the interrelated roles they perform.
In social terms, the scheme would deliver 69 dwellings, 7 of which would be
affordable units and be secured by a planning obligation. The Council cannot
currently demonstrate a 5-year housing land supply and the provision of new homes,
including affordable homes, carries significant weight in the determination of this
planning application.
While the proposed development would be in conflict with Policy RC2 (Ke), this
policy restricts the supply of housing and is therefore rendered out-of-date by virtue
of the lack of a five year housing land supply, as established in a recent appeal
decision on Alfreton Road, Sutton in Ashfield.

In economic terms, the Government has made clear its view that house building
plays an important role in promoting economic growth. The scheme would provide
economic benefits during the construction phase and in the longer term it would
result in increased expenditure in the local economy. There would also be further
benefits arising from increased Council Tax receipts and New Homes Bonus (NHB).
These are generic benefits that would occur with any major development, however
given the current economic climate – these are considered to carry medium weight.

Page 38

The layout, appearance and scale of the development is considered to be
acceptable. The impact upon highways safety, the amenity of local residents,
biodiversity, flooding and landscape have all been assessed and considered
acceptable – subject to planning conditions in certain cases.
Overall, the proposed development is considered to accord with both the
development plan and the NPPF. Accordingly, approval is recommended, subject to
the conditions outlined below and Section 106 requirements.
Recommendation: Approve, subject to the conditions detailed below and a
Section 106 Legal Agreement, which secures the
following:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Primary Education Contribution - £136,397.
Healthcare - £37,389.37.
Bus Stop Improvements - £20,000.
Public Open Space - £138,000 (includes maintenance payment of £51,750).
Public Realm - £35,000
Monitoring Contribution - £1,000.
Affordable Housing - 7 dwellings.

CONDITIONS
1. The development hereby approved shall be begun before the expiration of 3
years from the date of this permission.
2. This permission shall be read in accordance with the following plans:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Site Layout (dwg no. 19080 - 01J);
House Type Ascot (dwg no. Asc-01 & Asc-02);
House Type Beaulieu (dwg no. Beau-01 & Beau-02);
House Type Cheltenham (dwg no. Chelt-01 & Chelt-02);
House Type Hereford (dwg no. Her-01 & Her-02);
House Type Newmarket (dwg no. New-01 & New-02);
House Type Sandown (dwg no. Sand-01 & Sand-02);
House Type Stratford (dwg no. Strat-01 & Start-02);
House Type Winchester (dwg no. Win-01 & Win-02);
House Type Yelm (dwg no. Yelm-01 & Yelm-02);
House Type York (dwg no. York-01 & York-02);
Single Garage (dwg no. 19080-08);
Double Garage (dwg no. 19080-09);
Materials Layout (dwg no. 19080-05);
Boundary Treatments (dwg no. 19080-04).

Page 39

3. The dwellings shall not be occupied until full details of all hard and soft
landscaping have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority. All planting, seeding or turfing indicated on the approved
landscaping scheme shall be carried out in the first planting and seeding
seasons following the occupation of the first dwelling. Any trees, or plants,
which within a period of five years from the completion of the development
die, are removed or become seriously damaged or diseased shall be replaced
in the next planting season with other of a similar size and species.
4. Notwithstanding the approved plans, the development shall not be occupied
until surfacing details of the Bridleway have been submitted to and agreed in
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The approved details shall thereafter
be implemented and within an agreed timeframe.
5. Notwithstanding any submitted details, no site clearance, preparatory work or
development shall take place until information detailing the protection of
retained trees and hedgerows has been submitted to and approved in writing
by the Local Planning Authority.
6. The hereby permitted development shall be carried out in accordance with the
recommendations contained within Section 6 of the submitted Preliminary
Ecological Appraisal, Prepared by EMEC Ecology, Dated June 2020.
7. No part of the development hereby approved shall commence until a detailed
surface water drainage scheme based on the principles set forward by the
approved Flood Risk Assessment (FRA) and Drainage Strategy, has been
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority in
consultation with the Lead Local Flood Authority. The scheme shall be
implemented in accordance with the approved details prior to completion of
the development. The scheme to be submitted shall:
•
•
•
•

Demonstrate that the development will use SuDS throughout the site
as a primary means of surface water management and that design is in
accordance with CIRIA C753.
Limit the discharge rate generated by all rainfall events up to the 100
year plus 40% (for climate change) critical rain storm 5 l/s rates for the
developable area.
Provision of surface water run-off attenuation storage in accordance
with 'Science Report SCO30219 Rainfall Management for
Developments' and the approved FRA .
Provide detailed design (plans, network details and calculations) in
support of any surface water drainage scheme, including details on any
attenuation system, and the outfall arrangements. Calculations should
demonstrate the performance of the designed system for a range of
return periods and storm durations inclusive of the 1 in 1 year, 1 in 2

Page 40

•
•
•
•
•

year, 1 in 30 year, 1 in 100 year and 1 in 100 year plus climate change
return periods.
For all exceedance to be contained within the site boundary without
flooding new properties in a 100year+40% storm.
Map showing overland flow routing in baseline conditions then post
development for a 100YR + 40% CC event to evidence the site safety.
Details of STW approval for connections to existing network at Spa
Close and any adoption of site drainage infrastructure.
Provision of a construction phase management plan for surface water.
Evidence of how the on-site surface water drainage systems shall be
maintained and managed after completion and for the lifetime of the
development to ensure long term sustainability.

8. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with
mitigation measures stated in the Noise Impact Assessment, Prepared by
Sound Advise Acoustic Ltd, Ref: SA-6514, Dated: 17th November 2020 prior
to occupation.
9. No part of the development hereby permitted shall commence until a
Construction Management Plan has been submitted to and agreed in writing
by the Local Planning Authority that details the means of mitigation of
construction effects. This shall include but not be limited to the following:
• Methods for the mitigation of noise and vibration from building works,
including any piling works, and also from the operation of any
temporary power generation or pumping plant which will operate
overnight.
• Methods for dust control and suppression (dust management plan).
• Details of wheel washing facilities including location and type.
• The areas for the storage of plant and materials.
• Location of site compound.
All site works shall then proceed only in accordance with the approved
management plan unless otherwise agreed in writing beforehand with the
Local Planning Authority
10. No construction work shall take place outside the hours of 08:00-18:00 hours
Monday to Friday, 08:00-13:00 hours Saturday and not at all on
Sundays/Public Holidays without the prior written permission of the Local
Planning Authority.
11. Prior to the commencement of development, details of all the finished floor
levels, surrounding ground levels and levels of existing dwellings shall be
submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The
dwellings shall thereafter be built in accordance with the agreed details.

Page 41

12. All proposed integral, attached and detached garages within the development
shall be retained for the parking of vehicles at all times and shall not be
converted for any other domestic or business purpose without the prior written
consent of the Local Planning Authority.
13. No part of the development hereby permitted shall commence until details of
the new road have been submitted to and approved in writing by the LPA
including longitudinal and cross sectional gradients, parking provision, turning
facilities, access widths, visibility splays (including pedestrian, junction and
forward visibilities), street lighting, drainage and outfall proposals, traffic
calming features, construction specification, provision of and diversion of
utilities services, and any proposed structural works. All details submitted to
the LPA shall comply with the County Council’s current Highway Design &
Parking Guides and shall be implemented as approved at Section 38
Agreement stage under Highways Act 1980.
14. No part of the development hereby permitted shall be occupied until details of
the proposed arrangements and plans for future management and
maintenance of the proposed streets including associated drainage of the
development have been submitted to and approved in writing by the LPA. The
streets and drainage shall thereafter be maintained in accordance with the
approved management and maintenance details until such time as an
agreement has been entered subject to Section 38 of the Highways Act 1980.
15. No part of the development hereby permitted shall be brought into use until
the junction improvement works at Leamington Drive/Warnadene Road have
been provided in accordance with the requirements of the Highway Authority
and as shown for indicative purposes on drawing ADC2368-DR-002 Rev. P2.
16. The development will require the stopping up of the public highway
(Warnadene Road) and no part of the development hereby permitted shall be
brought into use nor shall obstruct the public highway until the areas of public
highway thereon, shown for indicative purposes only on drawing ADC2368DR-002 Rev. P2, have been formally stopped up.
17. No part of the development hereby permitted shall be brought into use until
the new road from the existing Clare Road, with 2 x 2m footways each side is
constructed up to at least binder course level to enable vehicle passage from
the site to the public highway.
18. Prior to the occupation of the first dwellinghouse the proposed speed control
measures on Clare Road, as shown for indicative purposes on drawing
ADC2368-DR-003 Rev. P1 dated 05/02/21, have been provided to the
satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority.

Page 42

19. Prior to the occupation of each property that’s is to be served the drives and
any parking or turning areas shall be surfaced in a hardbound material (not
loose gravel) for a minimum distance of 5.0 metres behind the highway
boundary. The surfaced drives and any parking or turning areas shall then be
maintained in such hardbound material for the life of the development.
20. Any garage doors shall be set back from the highway boundary a minimum
distance of 5.5m for sliding or roller shutter doors, 6.1m for up and over doors
or 6.5m for doors opening outwards and as such shall be maintained for the
life of the development.
21. No part of the development hereby permitted shall be brought into use until all
private driveways are constructed with provision to prevent the unregulated
discharge of surface water from the driveway to the public highway in
accordance with details first submitted to and approved in writing by the LPA.
The provision to prevent the unregulated discharge of surface water to the
public highway shall then be retained for the life of the development.
22. No part of the development hereby permitted shall be brought into use until
the existing 2 bus stops AS0710 and AS0182 Barnes Crescent on
Leamington Drive have been relocated to a position to be agreed with
Nottinghamshire County Council Transport and Travel Services, in
accordance with details to be submitted to and approved in writing by the
LPA.

REASONS
1. To comply with the requirements of Section 91 of the Town and Country
Planning Act 1990 as amended.
2. To ensure that the development takes the form envisaged by the Local
Planning Authority when determining the application.
3. In the interests of visual amenity.
4. In the interest of visual amenity and pedestrian safety.
5. In the interests of protecting retained trees and hedgerows.
6. To secure the ecological enhancement and mitigation measures.
7. To ensure the development has sufficient surface water management.
8. In the interests of residential amenity.

Page 43

9. In the interests of residential amenity.
10. In the interests of residential amenity.
11. In the interests of protecting visual and residential amenity.
12. To ensure the development has sufficient parking.
13. To ensure the development is constructed to a satisfactory/adoptable
standard for use by the public and in the interest of safety for all highway
users.
14. To ensure that the road infrastructure is maintained to an appropriate
standard.
15. In the interests of highway safety.
16. In the interests of highway safety.
17. To enable safe vehicle passage and access to the public highway network.
18. In the interests of highway safety.
19. To reduce the possibility of deleterious material being deposited on the public
highway (loose stones etc.)
20. To enable a vehicle to stand clear of the highway whilst the garage doors are
opened/closed and to protect the free and safe passage of traffic, including
pedestrians, in the public highway.
21. To ensure surface water from the site is not deposited on the public highway
causing danger to other road users.
22. In the interests of highway safety.
INFORMATIVES
1. The applicant/developer is strongly advised to ensure compliance with all
planning conditions, if any, attached to the decision. Failure to do so could
result in LEGAL action being taken by the Ashfield District Council at an
appropriate time, to ensure full compliance. If you require any guidance or
clarification with regard to the terms of any planning conditions then do not
hesitate to contact the Development & Building Control Section of the
Authority on Mansfield (01623 450000).

Page 44

2. In order to avoid impacts to nesting birds, all tree/shrub/hedgerow/scrub and
rough grassland removal work be undertaken outside of the bird-breeding
season (March-September inclusive). If works are to be carried out during
this time then a suitably qualified ecologist should be on site to survey for
nesting birds prior to any vegetation clearance. As you will be aware all
nesting birds', birds' nests, young and eggs (except pest species) are
protected by the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 (and as amended).
Nesting is taken to be from the point at which birds start to build a nest, to the
point at which the last chick of the last brood of the season has fully fledged
and left the nesting area.
3. The contractor must ensure compliance with current legislation on noise and
dust control including the Environmental Protection Act 1990 and the Control
of Pollution Act 1974. Relevant Codes of Practice set out procedures for
dealing with the control of noise on construction and demolition sites are
contained in BS5228: 2009 Noise and Vibration Control on Construction and
Open Sites.
4. Public Right of Way Information:
•
•
•

•
•
•

•

The footpath should remain open, unobstructed and be kept on its legal
alignment at all times. Vehicles should not be parked on the RoW or
materials unloaded or stored on the RoW so as to obstruct the path.
There should be no disturbance to the surface of the footpath without prior
authorisation from the Rights of Way team.
The safety of the public using the path should be observed at all times. A
Temporary Closure of the Footpath may be granted to facilitate public
safety during the construction phase subject to certain conditions. Further
information and costs may be obtained by contacting the Rights of Way
section. The applicant should be made aware that at least 5 weeks notice
is required to process the closure and an alternative route on should be
provided if possible.
If the route is to be fenced, ensure that the appropriate width is given to
the path and that the fence is low level and open aspect to meet good
design principles.
If a structure is to be built adjacent to the public footpath, the width of the
right of way is not to be encroached upon.
Structures cannot be constructed on the line of the right of way without the
prior authorisation of the Rights of way team. It should be noted that
structures can only be authorised under certain criteria and such
permission is not guaranteed.
If the design of any proposed development requires the legally recorded
route of the RoW to be diverted because it cannot be accommodated on
the legal line within the scheme, then this should be addressed under the
relevant provisions within the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 for the
diverting/stopping up of public rights of way affected by development. An

Page 45

•

•

•
•

•

application way under this act should be made to the Planning authority
and is a separate application to the planning permission.
The existing boundary hedge/tree line directly bordering the
development/boundary etc is the responsibility of the current
owner/occupier of the land. On the assumption that this boundary is to be
retained it should be made clear to all new property owners that they are
responsible for the maintenance of that boundary, including the hedge/tree
line ensuing that it is cut back so as not to interfere with right of way.
Should scaffold be required on or over the RoW then the applicant should
apply for a license and ensure that the scaffold is constructed so as to
allow
the
public
use
without
interruption.
http://www.nottinghamshire.gov.uk/transport/licences-andpermits/scaffolding-hoarding-and-advertising-boards
If this is not possible then an application to temporarily close the path for
the duration should also be applied for (6 weeks’ notice is required), email
countryside.access@nottscc.gov.uk
If a skip is required and is sited on a highway, which includes a RoW then
the company supplying the skip must apply for a permit.
http://www.nottinghamshire.gov.uk/transport/licences-and-permits/skippermit
The RoW should remain accessible by the users permitted by its status i.e.
equestrians if a on bridleway, motorised vehicles if on a byway open to all
traffic

5. The proposed development appears to require the diversion of a Public Right
of Way. The grant of planning permission for this development does not
authorise the obstruction or the diversion of this Public Right of Way and an
unlawful obstruction to the Public Right of Way is a criminal offence and may
result in the obstructing development being required to be removed.
A separate application for an Order diverting the Public Right of Way will be
required. An application under the Town and Country Planning Act 1990
should be made to the Planning Authority and is a separate application to the
planning permission.
6. The applicant should note that notwithstanding any planning permission that if
any highway forming part of the development is to be adopted by the Highway
Authority, the new roads and any highway drainage will be required to comply
with the Nottinghamshire County Council’s current highway design guidance
and specification for roadworks.
a) The Advanced Payments Code in the Highways Act 1980 applies and
under should contact the Highway Authority about compliance with the
Code, or alternatively to the issue of a Section 38 Agreement and bond
under the Highways Act 1980.

Page 46

b) It is strongly recommended that the developer contact the Highway
Authority at an early stage to clarify the codes etc. with which compliance
will be required in the particular circumstance, and it is essential that
design calculations and detailed construction drawings for the proposed
works are submitted to and approved by the County Council (or District
Council) in writing before any work commences on site. Please contact
Nottinghamshire County Council hdc.north@nottscc.gov.uk for details.
7. The Advanced Payments Code in the Highways Act 1980 applies and under
section 219 of the Act payment will be required from the owner of the land
fronting a private street on which a new building is to be erected. The
developer should contact the Highway Authority about compliance with the
Code, or alternatively to the issue of a Section 38 Agreement and bond under
the Highways Act 1980. A Section 38 Agreement can take some time to
complete. Therefore, it is recommended that the developer contact the
Highway Authority as early as possible. Furthermore, any details submitted in
relation to a reserved matters or discharge of condition planning application,
are unlikely to be considered by the Highway Authority until technical approval
of the Section 38 Agreement is issued.

It is strongly recommended that the developer contact the Highway Authority
at an early stage to clarify the codes etc. with which compliance will be
required in the particular circumstance, and it is essential that design
calculations and detailed construction drawings for the proposed works are
submitted to and approved by the County Council in writing before any work
commences on site.
Contact hdc.north@nottscc.co.uk 0115 804 00 22
8. In order to carry out any off site works required you will be undertaking work in
the public highway which is land subject to the provisions of the Highways Act
1980 (as amended) and therefore land over which you have no control. In
order to undertake the works, which must comply with the Nottinghamshire
County Council’s current highway design guidance and specification for
roadworks, the applicant will need to enter into an Agreement under Section
278 of the Act. The Agreement can take some time to complete as timescales
are dependent on the quality of the submission, as well as how quickly the
applicant responds with any necessary alterations. Therefore, it is
recommended that the applicant contacts the Highway Authority as early as
possible. Work in the public highway will not be permitted until the Section
278 Agreement is signed by all parties. Furthermore, any details submitted in
relation to a reserved matters or discharge of condition planning application,
are unlikely to be considered by the Highway Authority until technical approval
of the Section 278 Agreement is issued.
Please contact hdc.north@nottscc.co.uk for details.

Page 47

9. The HA only seeks to adopt streets where the new street network &
associated drainage is acceptable in all highways and transportation terms.
Accordingly, the HA may refuse to accept future maintenance liability of
roads/drainage systems that do not meet the required standards and
specification.
Planning consent is not consent to work on or adjacent to the public highway,
therefore prior to any works commencing on site including demolition works
you must contact Highways Network Management at licences@viaem.co.uk
to ensure all necessary licences and permissions are in place.
Any relevant details submitted in relation to a reserved matters or discharge of
condition planning application are unlikely to be considered by the Highway
Authority until after the relevant technical approval is issued.
10. The proposed development requires the Stopping Up of an existing public
highway (Warnadene Road). The grant of planning permission for this
development does not authorise the obstruction or the Stopping Up of this
highway and an unlawful obstruction to the public highway is a criminal
offence and may result in the obstructing development being required to be
removed.
A separate application for an Order for this process will be required. An
application under the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 should be made
to the Planning Authority and is a separate application to the planning
permission.
11. The applicant should note that any areas over the normal minimum, intended
for adoption will require the payment of a commuted sum for future
maintenance. (i.e. additional areas exceeding usual highway design
requirements, additional street furniture, traffic calming features, landscaping,
Sustainable Drainage Systems, retaining walls, bollards and materials outside
usual specification). The applicant is strongly advised to hold discussions with
the HA as soon as possible to agree sums, ownership and responsibility for
perpetuity.
12. The existing bus stop to the northern boundary of the triangular piece of land
between Leamington Drive and Warnadene Road is to be relocated to a
position agreed with Notts County Council Travel and Transport. Please
contact ptdc@nottscc.gov.uk
13. This permission is subject to a S106 legal agreement.

Page 48

V/2020/0546

MAP SCALE 1: 1250
CREATED DATE: 08/10/2020

Page 49

Ashfield District Council © Crown copyright and database right 2020. Ordnance Survey 100024849

COMMITTEE DATE

26/05/2021

APP REF

V/2020/0546

APPLICANT

D M Hollis

PROPOSAL

Application for Outline Planning Permission with All Matters
Reserved for Demolition of Former Solicitors Offices and
Erection of a Maximum of 8 Town Houses (C3)

LOCATION

2-4 Market View, Market
Nottinghamshire, NG17 1AQ

WEB-LINK

https://www.google.co.uk/maps/@53.1236553,-1.265621,17.04z

BACKGROUND PAPERS

WARD

Sutton Central and New Cross

Place,

Sutton

in

Ashfield,

A, C, D, F, K

App Registered: 18/08/2020

Expiry Date: 12/10/2020

Consideration has been given to the Equalities Act 2010 in processing this
application.
This application has been referred to Planning Committee by Cllr. Deakin on
the grounds on town centre regeneration and the applicant is related to an
elected member of the Council.
The Application
This is an Outline application with all Matters Reserved for the demolition of the
existing commercial buildings at 2-4 Market View, Sutton in Ashfield, and the
redevelopment of the site for up to eight dwellings. Each property will have a private
garden area sited to the rear.
Consultations
A site notice has been posted together with individual notification to surrounding
residents.
The following consultation responses have been received:
ADC Urban Design & Conservation:
The application site is clearly visible at short distance from within Sutton in Ashfield
Church and Market Place Conservation Area and so the redevelopment clearly has
the potential to impact on the setting of this designated heritage asset. The building
is modern and of no great architectural merit. It already appears quite dated and
lacks any measure of local distinctiveness. It appears quite isolated within the street,
with a distinct lack of enclosure and leakage of largely unattractive views to either
side as a consequence. The proposed demolition offers the opportunity to

Page 50

significantly upgrade and improve the street scene. The principle of demolition and
redevelopment can therefore be supported.
The indicative plans provided show that the redevelopment of the site would provide
a significant enhancement to the setting of the Conservation Area. The palette of
materials recommended in the Heritage Statement includes red brick, stone details
and slate which are all considered appropriate in this context. The form and massing
of the replacement building will need to be developed further in the reserved matters.
NCC Highway Authority:
This is an outline application with all matters reserved for the construction of up to 8
dwellings following demolition of offices within the town centre. The number of
bedrooms per dwelling is not currently specified. A condition should be applied
should parking be provided on site to ensure it complies with the Notts County
Council highway design guide.
Severn Trent Water:
No objections to the proposed development. Suggest a condition is applied requiring
full details of foul and surface water to be submitted.
Policy
Having regard to Section 38 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 the
main policy considerations are as follows:
National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) 2019:
Part 2 – Achieving Sustainable Development
Part 5 – Delivering a Sufficient Supply of Homes
Part 7 – Ensuring the Vitality of Town Centres
Part 9 – Promoting Sustainable Transport
Part 11 – Making Effective Use of Land
Part 12 – Achieving Well Designed Places
Part 16 – Conserving and Enhancing the Historic Environment
Ashfield Local Plan Review (ALPR) 2002:
ST1 – Development
ST2 – Main Urban Area
EV10 – Conservation Areas
HG5 – New Residential Development
SH1 – District Shopping Centre
Residential Design Guide SPD 2014
Residential Car Parking Standards SPD 2014
Relevant Planning History
None.

Page 51

Comment:
This application seeks outline planning consent for the demolition a commercial unit,
known as the 2-4 Market View, which is sited within the town centre of Sutton in
Ashfield, and the construction of up to eight residential dwellings with associated
amenity space to the rear.
The application site presently comprises two, two-storey commercial buildings of
brick and tile construction; one in use as a solicitor’s office and the other a vacant
charity shop. A further commercial unit is attached to the side of number 2 but is not
included within the application site boundary. Also encompassed within the site is a
small private car park which is bounded by a low height wall and railings. The
application site is sited prominently within the market place of Sutton town centre,
with no break between the front elevation and the highway edge.
Directly to the north of the site is existing commercial development situated on High
Street and Low Street, whilst to the east and south is Sutton Community Academy.
To the west of the site is Sutton market place, which comprises of a public car park.
Commercial development lies further to the west beyond the car park.
The application site lies adjacent to the Sutton in Ashfield Church and Market Place
Conservation Area and forms a focal position on the periphery of the Market Place.
The main issues to consider in this application are the principle of the proposed
development, the impact of the proposal on the character and appearance of the
area and heritage assets, as well as the impact on residential amenity and highway
safety.
Principle of Development:
The application site is located within the main urban area of Sutton in Ashfield,
where the principle of development is generally considered acceptable, as set out
within policy ST2 of the ALPR 2002, providing that amongst other matters, the
proposal does not adversely affect the character, quality, amenity or safety of the
environment, and will not adversely affect highways safety.
The NPPF 2019 sets out three overarching objectives to achieving sustainable
development. These are an economic objective, a social objective, and an
environmental objective. The social objective, amongst other things, seeks to
support strong, vibrant and healthy communities, by ensuring that a sufficient
number and range of homes can be provided to meet the needs of present and
future generations. This objective is reflected in Part 5 – Delivering a Sufficient
Supply of Homes of the NPPF 2019, which sets out the Government’s aim to
significantly boost the supply of homes.
The application site falls within the designated town centre of Sutton in Ashfield.
Under the provision of policy SH1 of the ALPR 2002, residential development will be
permitted within district shopping centres to assist with the diversity of such areas.

Page 52

This policy position is consistent with Part 7 – Ensuring the Vitality of Town Centres
of the NPPF 2019.
As previously mentioned, the site comprises two vacant commercial properties and
in 2020 14% of units within the town centre of Sutton were recorded as being vacant
(Retail Floorspace Survey, 2020). It is therefore considered that the demolition of the
two units and redevelopment of the site for residential purposes will not result in any
significant adverse impact on the availability of units within Sutton town centre for
retail and business purposes, and therefore will not impact on the potential for
economic growth in the area.
The principle of demolition of the existing buildings and the redevelopment of the site
for up to eight residential dwellings is therefore considered acceptable in this
instance.
Impact Upon the Character and Appearance of the Area & Heritage Assets:
Although not sited within the designated Sutton in Ashfield Church and Market Place
Conservation Area, the application site lies immediately adjacent to the southeastern corner of the Conservation Area and is clearly visible at short distance from
within the Conservation Area. The redevelopment of the site therefore has the
potential to impact on the setting of this designated heritage asset.
Paragraph 189 of the Framework stipulates that in determining applications which
have the potential to affect heritage assets, local planning authorities should require
an applicant to describe the significance of any heritage assets affected. The
applicant has subsequently submitted a Heritage Statement to support the proposed
redevelopment of the site.
In addition to the above, paragraphs 193 and 194 of the Framework necessitate that
when considering the impact of a proposed development on the significance of a
designated heritage asset, great weight should be given to the asset’s conservation,
whilst any harm to, or loss of, the significance of a designated heritage asset, should
require clear and convincing justification.
Comments received from the Council’s Conservation Officer confirm that the building
proposed for demolition is modern, of no great architectural merit and lacks any
measure of local distinctiveness. The application site, when viewed from within the
setting of the Conservation Area, appears isolated within the street scene with a
distinct lack of enclosure.
The proposed demolition of units 2, 3 & 4 and the truncation of unit 1 is considered
to offer the opportunity to significantly upgrade and improve the street scene in this
location and provide a significant enhancement to the setting of the Conservation
Area.

Page 53

As this application comprises of an Outline application with all matters reserved, no
details have been provided in regards to the definitive layout, design and
appearance of the proposed development. Nevertheless, the palette of materials
suggested in the submitted Heritage Statement includes red brick, stone details and
slate which are all considered appropriate in this location. The form and massing of
the replacement buildings will also need to be developed further as part of a future
Reserved Matters application
Residential Amenity:
Policy HG5 of the ALPR 2002 stipulates that residential development will be
permitted where the design and layout of properties minimizes overlooking and
provides a reasonable degree of privacy and security.
An indicate layout plan has been submitted with the application which indicates that
the site is large enough to accommodate eight dwellings and although the areas of
private amenity space may fall marginally below the required standards, as set out
within the Council’s Residential Design Guide SPD 2014, as the site is located within
a town centre location, this would likely be acceptable in this instance due to the
proximity of the site to other areas of public and open space.
It is understood that there is a residential flat at unit 1 at first floor level. It is
considered that the dwellings could be designed and sited so that there is no undue
harm on neighbouring residential properties by means of massing, overshadowing or
overlooking. Such details would be carefully assessed at the Reserved Matters stage
to prevent any potential impacts on neighbouring residents.
Highway Safety:
Although access is a Reserved Matter, the indicative site layout plan submitted
suggests that there would not be any off-street parking provision provided as part of
the development.
Whilst the Council’s Residential Car Parking Standards SPD 2014 stipulates
minimum off-street parking requirements depending on bedroom numbers, as the
site lies within a highly accessible town centre location, and future occupiers will
have little use for a private vehicle. Should a situation arise where future occupiers
do have access to, or own a private vehicle, there are several public car parks within
the immediate vicinity of the site which they could utilise, including the Sutton Market
Car Park where season tickets are available from the Local Council.
Conclusion:
The application site is located within a sustainable, town centre location, and offers
the opportunity to redevelop site and improve the local street scene and setting of
Sutton in Ashfield Church and Market Place Conservation Area.

Page 54

Furthermore, the site is considered to be of a sufficient size to accommodate eight
dwellings, without raising any significant concerns in respect of residential amenity or
highway safety.
It is therefore recommended this application be granted planning permission, subject
to the below conditions:

Recommendation: Grant Outline Conditional Consent

CONDITIONS
1. The formal approval of the Local Planning Authority shall be obtained
prior to the commencement of any development with regard to the
following Reserved Matters:
(a) Layout
(b) Scale
(c) Appearance
(d) Access
(e) Landscaping
2. The development to which this permission relates shall be begun not
later than the expiration of 2 years from the final approval of the
Reserved Matters or, in the case of approval on different dates, the final
approval of the last such matter to be approved.
3. Drainage details for the disposal of surface water and foul sewage shall
be with the Reserved Matters and shall be implemented in accordance
with the approved details before the development is first brought into
use.
4. Notwithstanding the details submitted with the application or during its
consideration by the Council this permission does not relate to a
specific layout.
5. This permission shall be read in accordance with the following plans:
Site Location Plan, Drawing No. MarketView_SLP, Received 19/08/20.
The development shall thereafter be undertaken in accordance with
these plans unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning
Authority.

Page 55

REASONS
1. To comply with the requirements of Section 92 of the Town and Country
Planning Act 1990 as amended.
2. To comply with the requirements of Section 92 of the Town and Country
Planning Act 1990 as amended.
3. To ensure that the development provides a satisfactory means of
drainage, in order to reduce the risk of creating; or exacerbating a
flooding problem, and to minimise the risk of pollution.
4. To define the terms of this permission and for the avoidance of doubt.
5. To ensure that the development takes the form envisaged by the Local
Planning Authority when determining the application.

INFORMATIVE
1. The applicant/developer is strongly advised to ensure compliance with
all planning conditions, if any, attached to the decision. Failure to do so
could result in LEGAL action being taken by the Ashfield District
Council at an appropriate time, to ensure full compliance. If you require
any guidance or clarification with regard to the terms of any planning
conditions then do not hesitate to contact the Development & Building
Control Section of the Authority on Mansfield (01623 450000).

Page 56

V/2020/0808

MAP SCALE 1: 1250
CREATED DATE: 17/05/2021

Page 57
Ashfield District Council © Crown copyright and database right 2021. Ordnance Survey 100024849

COMMITTEE DATE

26/05/2021

APP REF

V/2020/0808

APPLICANT

L Marshall

PROPOSAL

5 Detached Two Storey Dwellings

LOCATION

Cauldwell Livery Stables, Cauldwell Road, Sutton in Ashfield,
Nottinghamshire, NG17 5LB

WEB-LINK

https://www.google.co.uk/maps/@53.1210682,-1.2218578,17z

BACKGROUND PAPERS

WARD

Sutton Junction and Harlow Wood

A, C, D, F, K

App Registered: 24/11/2020

Expiry Date: 18/01/2021

Consideration has been given to the Equalities Act 2010 in processing this
application.
This application has been referred to Planning Committee by Councillor
Deakin to discuss countryside implications.
The Application
This is a full application seeking planning consent for the construction of five
detached dwellings, with associated access, parking and private amenity space on
land at Cauldwell Livery Stables, off Cauldwell Road, Sutton in Ashfield.
The application site measures approximately 75m in width and has a depth of
approximately 70m and is located to the east of a row of seven existing dwellings
along Cauldwell Road. The application site comprises of an undeveloped paddock,
understood to be used in association with Cauldwell Livery Stables, which lies to the
south of the site.
Consultations
A press notice and site notice have been posted together with individual notification
to surrounding residents.
The following consultation responses have been received:
Resident Comments:
First Consultation:
3x Letters of objection/concern received from local residents in respect of the
following:
-

Loss of open countryside

Page 58

-

Set a precedent for further development
Impact on local wildlife, including protected species
Increase in traffic
Increase in localised flooding
Unsustainable location and increased reliance on private vehicles
Impact on property values

Second Consultation:
5x Letters of objection/concern received. In addition to the above comments, the
following was raised:
-

Impact on visual amenity/out of keeping
Speed limit along Cauldwell Road should be reduced to 30mph
Previous application in 2020 on adjoining land was classed as ‘the last
developable plot’ in this location by officers

Concerns have also been raised that residents have not been consulted on the
application. A press notice was issued in the Mansfield CHAD, a site notice was
erected outside the application site, and all occupiers abutting the application site
were notified by letter. The Council is therefore satisfied that consultations have
been carried out in accordance with the Council’s statutory requirements.
Nottinghamshire County Council Highways:
This application is for the construction of 5 dwellings served by a new shared access
from Cauldwell Road. The site layout plan submitted shows a wide highway verge at
the site frontage. A plan has been submitted showing visibility splays for this
proposal. The splays are required to be measured from a setback distance of 2.4m
into the site from the edge of carriageway. The setback distance shown is less than
this. Appropriate visibility is likely achievable subject to the removal of highway trees.
A chevron sign at the site frontage may require removal to ensure suitable access
into the site is provided
The removal of ‘highway’ trees will require consent from the County Council. Should
any trees require removal as a result of the construction of the access or for visibility
purposes, the applicant is required to provide suitable mitigation planting within the
adopted highway or paying the monetary value of the trees using the CAVAT
system. If no highway trees are to be removed, a method statement for the
protection of trees will be required.
Nottinghamshire Wildlife Trust:
In order to be able to undertake a full evaluation of the potential ecological impacts of
the scheme we would expect to see an ecological desktop assessment and Phase 1
survey (together with any detailed protected species surveys required) being carried
out to inform a supporting environmental report.

Page 59

NB: No further comments received following re-consultation on receipt of the
Preliminary Ecological Appraisal.
Environment Agency:
The historic landfill site known as Sutton Tip, Cauldwell Road lies beneath the
application site. An application for a Waste Disposal Licence was received by the
Waste Regulation Authority in 1981 (reference 4/81/119/55NE) for the disposal of
construction industry waste. However, the licence was never issued due to the site
not having relevant planning permission. It is understood that a small amount of
waste material was brought on-site. Controlled waters are also particularly sensitive
in this location as the proposal is located on the Lenton Sandstone Principal aquifer
and lies within source protection zone 3.
No objections to the proposed development on the proviso that a planning condition
is included requiring that a watching brief for contamination is maintained during
development of the site. Without this condition we would object to the proposal in line
with paragraph 170 of the National Planning Policy Framework because it cannot be
guaranteed that the development will not be put at unacceptable risk from, or be
adversely affected by, unacceptable levels of water pollution.
Policy
Having regard to Section 38 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 the
main policy considerations are as follows:
National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) 2019:
Part 5 – Delivering a Sufficient Supply of Homes
Part 12 – Achieving Well Designed Places
Part 15 – Conserving and Enhancing the Natural Environment
Ashfield Local Plan Review (ALPR) 2002:
ST1 – Development
ST4 – Remainder of the District
EV2 – Countryside
HG5 – New Residential Development
Residential Design Guide SPD 2014
Residential Car Parking Standards SPD 2014
Relevant Planning History
V/1986/0270
Details: Change of Use to Livery Stables
Decision: Conditional Consent

Page 60

Comment:
This is an application which seeks full planning consent for the construction of five
detached, two-storey residential dwellings, with associated off-street parking
provision and private amenity space. A new vehicular access and private driveway is
to be created off Cauldwell Road to facilitate the proposed development.
The application site comprises of a parcel of undeveloped paddock land which is
used in association with Cauldwell Livery Stables. The site is bounded by mature
vegetation along the northern and eastern boundaries, and a timber post and rail
fence along the southern and western boundaries. Open countryside lies to the
north, east and south of the site, whilst a small row of seven dwellings lies to the
west on the opposite side of an access track.
The application site is located outside of the districts main urban areas or named
settlements, in an area designated as countryside, as set out within policy ST4 and
EV2 of the ALPR 2002.
In the determination of the application, the main planning considerations include the
principle of the development; impact on the character and appearance of the locality;
impact on residential amenity; impact on ecology, highway safety and ground
stability. These are considered in turn below.
Principle of Development:
The application site is located within an area designated as countryside as outlined
within policy ST4 of the ALPR 2002. Under policy ST4, permission will only be
granted for sites allocated for development, or development appropriate to the
countryside, as outlined in policy EV2 of the ALPR 2002.
Policy EV2 of the ALPR 2002 restricts development in the countryside to defined
appropriate forms of development. It also emphasises that development must be
located and designed so as not to adversely affect the character of the countryside,
in particular its openness. Policy EV2 identifies various forms of development which
comprise of appropriate development in the countryside which includes the following:
a) Rural uses, including agriculture, forestry, mineral extraction and waste
disposal;
b) Outdoor sport, outdoor recreation and tourism uses;
c) Cemeteries and utility installations that require a rural location;
d) New buildings which are essential for uses appropriate to the countryside and
the need for the proposed location has been established;
e) Re-use of existing buildings;
f) Replacement, alteration or extension to existing buildings;
g) Infill development which does not have an adverse effect on the scale and
character of the area; and
h) Development within the villages of Fackley and Teversal where it does not
have an adverse effect on the character of the village.

Page 61

Clearly the proposed development of five dwellings cannot be seen to be compliant
with sections a), b), c), d), e), f) or h).
In regards to section g) (infill development), the supporting text identifies that infilling
may be acceptable within small settlements or hamlets, and that infill development
will normally comprise of one or two dwellings within a small gap in the existing
pattern of development. Although acknowledged that existing development lies to the
west of the site in the form of seven residential dwellings, the nearest built
development to the east of the site lies just under 1.5km away and comprises of a
handful of residential dwellings which just fall outside the main urban area of
Mansfield. The proposal is therefore considered to constitute an extension to the
existing limited ribbon development along Cauldwell Road and an encroachment into
the open countryside, rather than an infill development.
The proposal therefore does not fall within the remit to be classed as appropriate
development within the countryside, as set out within policy EV2 of the ALPR 2002.
As the Council cannot identify a five year housing land supply, in accordance with
the NPPF 2019, the presumption in favour of sustainable development should apply.
It is acknowledged that the proposal would provide a number of benefits, including
support for a small house builders and other economic benefits that would be
generated during the construction of the dwellings and occupation thereafter. The
proposal would also assist in providing a contribution towards the Districts housing
supply, albeit modest, meeting one of the tenets of the social objective of sustainable
development.
Having said this, Paragraph 170(b) of the NPPF 2019 makes clear that the
countryside, although not designated and with no specific policy protection,
nevertheless has worth in the planning balance, given that the countryside is said to
have intrinsic character and beauty. Given the location of the application site, the
proposed development would result in the creation of new built form, which
encroaches into the surrounding countryside setting. The proposal would
subsequently give the impression of additional urbanisation within the countryside,
as it would result in the loss of undeveloped/paddock land which forms part of the
verdant and open appearance of the area.
Part 5 of the NPPF 2019, Delivering a Sufficient Supply of Homes, sets out that to
promote sustainable development in rural areas, housing should be located where it
will enhance or maintain the vitality of rural communities. Isolated new homes should
however be avoided in the countryside. A recent High Court judgement reasoned
that judging “isolation” simply by reference to whether there was another nearby
dwelling would be contrary to the government’s policy of promoting sustainable
development close to existing settlements in rural areas.
The site does not form part of a settlement. It is located approximately 0.8 km away
from the main urban area of Sutton in Ashfield and approximately 1.4km from the

Page 62

nearest convenience store. Although there is a footpath along Caudwell Road, local
amities and services are not within easy walking distance and there is no bus link
serving properties along Cauldwell Road. Part 9 of the NPPF 2019, Promoting
Sustainable Transport, looks to maximise sustainable transport options but
recognises that this will vary between urban and rural areas. However, given the
location of the application site, any future occupiers of the proposed dwellings are
likely to be highly dependent upon private transport to access the majority of
services not available in the immediate vicinity of the site.
Taking into account all these aspects, it is considered that the proposal would result
in the development of five isolated dwellings and fails to meet any of the exceptions
for rural dwellings, as set out in paragraph 79 of the Framework. Furthermore, the
proposal does not meet paragraph 103 of the NPPF, which states that planning
should actively manage patterns of growth to support the use of public transport,
walking and cycling.
Whilst the proposal would make a small contribution to the supply of housing within
the District, it is considered that the development in the proposed location would
result in the construction of five isolated dwellings within the countryside, creating an
urbanising impact on the appearance of the wider environment, and would result in
the dependence on private transportation to access essential services. The proposal
therefore does not amount to appropriate development in the countryside, and would
be contrary to policy EV2 of the ALPR 2002 and policies contained within the NPPF
2019.
Character and Appearance:
Part 12 – Achieving Well Designed Places of the NPPF 2019 places a substantial
emphasis on the importance of good design, with the creation of high-quality
buildings and places. This includes the effect of the proposed development on the
character and appearance of the surrounding locality. This stance is supported by
policies ST1 and HG5 of the ALPR 2002, which amongst other matters, seeks to
permit development where it will not adversely affect the character, quality, amenity
or safety of the environment, and where the design is acceptable in terms of
appearance, scale and siting.
The five dwellings have been designed to incorporate modern design features,
including floor to ceiling glazing which will be encased in coloured uPVC frames. Red
rustic style facing bricks and grey concrete roof tiles will be used in the construction
of the dwellings. The proposed dwellings are considered suburban in design and
monolithic in appearance when viewed together, and within the context of the nearby
ribbon development.
The existing timber post and rail fencing which borders the application site and is
reflective of the locality is to be removed. In its place will be the erection of a 1.8m
high brick wall which is proposed to be constructed along the sites eastern, southern

Page 63

and western boundaries to encompass the dwellings from the surrounding
countryside.
The application site benefits from a frontage onto Cauldwell Road. As previously
mentioned, the site frontage is presently characterised by the existence of
established mature vegetation, comprising a mix of trees and hedgerows, which is
considered to be a significantly positive visual attribute within the surrounding street
scene. The submitted site layout plan indicates that with the exception of the access,
this vegetation will be largely maintained as part of any development.
Whilst the layout of the site in terms of the plot sizes and set-back from the highway
edge are considered to be in keeping with the prevailing pattern of the limited
development to the west of the site, the proposed scheme would introduce
significant amounts of built development into the open countryside. In addition, it is
considered that approval of the application will result in an urbanising appearance of
the site, resulting in a detrimental impact upon the verdant appearance of the wider
environment, due to the loss of existing paddock land, which forms part of the
countryside character and facilitates the openness of the area.
The proposal would subsequently result in an unwelcome intrusion into the open
countryside without any demonstrated agricultural need or justification, contrary with
the aforementioned local and national policies.
Residential Amenity:
Paragraph 127 of the Framework seeks to create places which promote health and
well-being, with a high standard of amenity for existing and future users and policy
HG5 of the ALPR 2002 which states that residential development will be permitted
where the amenity of neighbouring properties is protected. Given the overall siting of
the proposed dwellings, the proposal would not give rise to any detrimental massing,
overshadowing or overlooking impacts on nearby residential occupiers and any
future occupiers will be provided with an acceptable standard of amenity, through the
provision of adequate internal standards, and generous areas of private amenity
space to the rear.
Ecology:
Following receipt of comments from Nottinghamshire Wildlife Trust, a Preliminary
Ecological Appraisal has been submitted to support the application. The dominant
habitat within the application site is ‘neutral grassland’. The ecological appraisal
details that this habitat is of low ecological value. Field boundary features, including
hedgerows and trees, are however considered to be of notable ecological value and
of potential value to several protected species.
Whilst the ecological appraisal does not identify the presence of any protected
species on the site, it is however noted that Great Crested Newts may breed in the
local area and could therefore use the site. The scheme also has potential to

Page 64

negatively impact foraging and commuting bats through limited habitat loss and
potential impacts arising from artificial lighting.
The appraisal therefore makes a number of recommendations in relation to
mitigation and enhancement measures and these should be subject to planning
conditions as part of any grant of permission. The recommendations include,
amongst others, further surveys for Great Crested Newts prior to the commencement
of the development, the provision of an ecologically friendly landscaping and lighting
plans, and the provision of bird boxes.
Highway Safety:
Part 9 – Promoting Sustainable Transport of the NPPF 2019 seeks to ensure that
safe and suitable access to the site can be achieved for all users, whilst minimising
significant impacts on the transport network or highway safety.
It is considered that adequate visibility splays can be achieved at the site access,
subject to the removal of a number of mature highway trees and vegetation, which
will need to be compensated for either through a replanting scheme or by paying the
monetary value of the trees.
In regards to parking provision, each of the proposed dwellings would be afforded a
minimum of three off-street parking spaces which accords with the Council’s
Residential Car Parking Standards SPD 2014 for a 4+ bedroom property and
adequate turning space to allow vehicles to appropriately manoeuvre within the site,
so that all vehicles can enter and egress the site in a forward gear is proposed.
Land Stability:
The Environmental Agency indicate that a historic landfill site known as Sutton Tip,
Cauldwell Road lies beneath the application site. The Environment Agency have
confirmed that they have no objections to the proposed development, however this is
on the proviso that a planning condition is attached to any grant of permission
requiring a watching brief for contamination during development of the site.
Conclusion:
As the Council cannot identify a 5 year housing land supply, the policies which are
most important for determining the application should be considered out of date,
particularly in relation to housing, and the presumption in favour of sustainable
development should be applied, resulting in the tilted balance.
The NPPF 2019 sets out three overarching objectives to sustainable development –
economic, social and environmental. These are considered in the context of the
overall planning balance.
It is acknowledged that the proposal would provide a number of benefits, including
support for small house builders and other economic benefits that would be
generated during the construction of the dwellings and occupation thereafter. The

Page 65

proposal would also assist in providing a modest contribution towards the Districts
housing supply.
Having said this, the scheme would result in the development of five dwellings, which
would be contrary to the social objective of sustainable development, due to the
proposal fostering a scheme whereby essential services would not be easily
accessible for any future occupants, with any future occupants requiring the use of a
private vehicle, contrary to the environmental objective of sustainable development.
Furthermore, no overwhelming need or public benefit has been demonstrated for the
proposal in this location. The proposal would also conflict with the environmental
objective to protect and enhance the natural environment, through the construction
of the dwellings within a countryside setting, resulting in a detrimental impact upon
the character and appearance of the wider environment and the openness of the
countryside, due to the urbanising impact created by the scheme.
As such, the limited benefits of the scheme are outweighed by the inappropriate
location of the development, including harm to the character and appearance of the
area. Accordingly, the adverse impact of the development would significantly and
demonstrably outweigh the benefits of the proposal when assessed against the
policies in the NPPF as a whole.
On balance therefore, it is considered that the proposal does not constitute an
appropriate form of development in the countryside, and it is subsequently
recommended that this application is refused on the following grounds:

Recommendation: Full Application Refusal
REASONS
1. The proposal represents an inappropriate form of development within
the countryside and does not constitute sustainable rural development
due to its location. The location of the proposed development would
lead to any future occupiers being dependent on the use of a private
motor vehicle to access essential services. No special circumstances
have been submitted to justify the proposal being acceptable. As such,
the application is contrary to saved policy EV2 of the Ashfield Local
Plan Review 2002, and conflicts with Paragraph 79 and Part 9 –
Promoting Sustainable Transport of the National Planning Policy
Framework 2019.
2. The proposal represents an unsatisfactory form of development within a
countryside setting. The proposal would give rise to a detrimental
impact upon the openness of the countryside in this location through
the creation of new built form within an existing undeveloped paddock

Page 66

area, creating additional urbanisation. The scheme is subsequently
considered to have a detrimental impact upon the intrinsic character
and appearance of the countryside in this location. The proposal is as
such contrary to policy EV2 of the Ashfield Local Plan Review 2002 and
Part 15 – Conserving and Enhancing the Natural Environment of the
National Planning Policy Framework 2019. These policies state that
development should not adversely affect the character, quality or
amenity of the environment, and should respond to local character.

Page 67

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 5

Report To:

Planning Committee

Date:

26th May 2021

Heading:

PLANNING APPEAL DECISIONS

Portfolio Holder:

PLACE, PLANNING AND REGENERATION

Ward/s:

ASHFIELDS, SUTTON CENTRAL AND NEW CROSS,
HUCKNALL NORTH

Key Decision:

No

Subject to Call-In:

No

Purpose of Report
To inform Members of recent Planning Appeal Decisions.

Recommendation(s)
To Note the Appeal Decisions.

Reasons for Recommendation(s)
To bring to Members attention the recent Appeal Decisions.
Alternative Options Considered
(with reasons why not adopted)
N/A
Planning Application –Appeal Decisions
Ashfields
Planning Application –V/2019/0491
Site – Land to rear of 211 Alfreton Road Sutton in Ashfield NG17 1JP
Proposal – Outline application with some matters reserved for a
maximum of 100 dwellings and associated access including demolition of 211 Alfreton
Road.
Appeal Decision –Appeal Allowed
Costs Application by appellant – Refused
The Inspector considered the Council’s concerns regarding the effect of the proposed
development on the character and appearance of the site and surrounding area with
particular reference to the loss of open space, the effects of on biodiversity and

Page 69

protected species and whether S106 contributions required by the Council are
justified. He concluded that benefits of the proposal outweighed the loss of part of the
open area and it would have limited harm on the character and appearance of the
area. He concluded the information on biodiversity should not prevent development of
the site subject to suitable mitigation and all the contributions were accepted to be
justified and meet the tests.
In respect of the appellants costs application he concluded the reasons for refusing the
proposed development had been adequately substantiated in the Council’s statement
of case. The reasons were precise, specific and relevant to the application and the
evidence presented was not vague, generalised, or unduly reliant on the views of local
residents. The decision was a matter of Members’ judgement which differed to that of
the Officer’s and the Inspector’s but was not unreasonable.
Sutton Central and New Cross
Planning Applications –V/2017/0318 and V/2018/0221
Site – Land Off Mansfield Road/Eastfield Side, Sutton in Ashfield, NG17 4HH
Proposal – Erection of Retail Store with Car Parking and Landscaping
Appeal Decisions – Both Appeals Dismissed
Costs Application by Council – Refused
These appeals relate to alternative schemes for the development of a retail store (Lidl).
The 2018 application was granted permission; however, this was quashed by the High
Court because of inadequate reasoning being given for the decision. The second appeal
was on the basis of non-determination of the application.
The key issue with both appeals was whether a satisfactory sequential test has been
carried out and whether an impact test is necessary. The Inspector considered that both
appeals failed the sequential test, as the Northern Bridge Road site was both suitable
and available. He noted that Asda has maintained the site was available for offers and
that none had been forthcoming from Lidl. There was also no substantive evidence that
Asda has hoarded the site despite its ownership for many years.
In terms of retail impact, the Inspector did note that a significant proportion of premises
along Outram Street would not be direct competition. However, for the few convenience
stores in Outram Street any impact of a store such as Lidl would be likely to be much
greater. The Inspector judged that the impact on Outram Street would be such as to
reach significant adverse levels, because of the likely diversion from convenience stores
combined with the vulnerability of the centre. He concluded that the proposals are in
clear breach of the NPPF objective that planning decisions should support the role of
town centres at the heart of their communities
The Inspector considered that for the 2017 appeal, the proposed store would have a
harmful impact on the character and appearance of the area, due to the raising of the
land levels and the stores forward projection. The proposal was also considered to have
a harmful impact on the living conditions of residents, through the disruption of deliveries
and the dominant presence of the building itself. This was contrary to policies SH8 and
ST1 of the Local Plan.

Page 70

Finally, the costs application made by the Council was refused. The Inspector found that
the appellant did not act unreasonably in putting forward a case that the NBR site was
unsuitable for the proposed developments.
Planning Application – V/2020/0671
Site – 2 Russell Street, Sutton in Ashfield, NG17 4BE
Proposal – Conversion of Dwelling (C3) to a House of Multiple Occupation (sui generis)
and the Removal of One Window
Appeal Decision – Appeal Allowed
The Inspector considered that the Council’s reference to the loss of a family home was
not substantiated by planning policy which seek to protect family sized homes from
conversion into large HMO’s or evidence to show that the surrounding area had seen a
significant number of family homes converted.
Concerns were raised by the Council in regards to the overdevelopment of the site and
the subsequent harm to the living conditions of nearby residents. The Inspector
concluded that the proposed development would provide adequate space and living
conditions for any future occupiers, and that the noise and disturbance generated from
the development would not cause significant harm to the living conditions of neighbours.
Hucknall North
Planning Application – V/2020/0213
Site – 54 Titchfield Street, Hucknall, NG15 7BH
Proposal – Change of Use from Dwelling C3 to 6 bedroom (8 person) House of Multiple
Occupation
Appeal Decision – Appeal Allowed
Although concerns had been raised by local residents and the Council regarding the
increase in noise, disturbance and overlooking arising from the proposed development,
the Inspector concluded that as no extensions or external alterations were proposed as
part of the scheme, any mutual overlooking between properties would remain the same
as pre-existing. The Inspector also considered that there was no evidence to support
claims that occupiers of a HMO would be more inclined to make noise and cause
disturbance when compared to a single large family.
Whilst the Inspector accepted that the proposal may lead to some additional parking
demand within the locality, due to the proximity of the site to Hucknall town centres
amenities and services, it is reasonable to assume that future occupiers would be
attracted by opportunities to use public transport, or walk or cycle to services and
employment centres.
Planning Application – V/2020/0480
Site – 2 Vaughan Avenue, Hucknall, NG15 8BT
Proposal – Dwelling
Appeal Decision – Appeal Dismissed
The Inspector agreed with the Council that the construction of a single dwelling in the
proposed location would have an unsatisfactory relationship with neighbouring

Page 71

properties and would give rise to a harmful impact on the street scene of Vaughan
Avenue. The Inspector also concluded that the proposal would materially harm the living
conditions of the occupants at neighbouring properties by virtue of massing,
overshadowing and mutual overlooking.
Implications
Corporate Plan:
Reporting these decisions ensures we are open and transparent in our decision
making process.
Legal:
Legal issues relating to specific planning appeals are set out in the report. As the
report is for noting, there are no legal issues associated with the recommendation in
the report.
Finance:
Budget Area

Implication

General Fund – Revenue Budget

None

General Fund – Capital
Programme
Housing Revenue Account –
Revenue Budget
Housing Revenue Account –
Capital Programme

None
None
None

Risk: N/A
Risk

Mitigation

Human Resources:
No implications
Equalities:
(to be completed by the author)
None
Other Implications:
(if applicable)
None
Reason(s) for Urgency
(if applicable)
N/A
Reason(s) for Exemption
(if applicable)
N/A

Page 72

Background Papers
(if applicable)
None
Report Author and Contact Officer
Mick Morley
Development Team Manager
01623 457538
m.morley@ashfield.gov.uk
Theresa Hodgkinson
DIRECTOR – PLACE AND COMMUNITIES

Page 73

This page is intentionally left blank

